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Summary of Results

Scottish Re Group Limited (“SRGL”, the “Company”’wé&”, “our” and “us”) is a holding company
incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islantts eur principal executive office in Bermuda.

For the three and nine months ended September0d@, SRGL reported net income attributable to adin
shareholders of $82.4 million, or $0.38 diluteddme per ordinary share, and $259.9 million, or §ld#uted
income per ordinary share, respectively, as contpsmenet income attributable to ordinary sharehsder the
three and nine months ended September 30, 20@204£9 million, or $0.92 diluted income per ordinahare, and
$2,040.3 million, or $9.34 diluted income per oatinshare, respectively.

The net income attributable to ordinary sharehalder the three month periods ended September®@ and
September 30, 2009 was primarily driven by $89.0ioni and $191.1 million, respectively, of net rieed and
unrealized gains in the Company’s invested assets.

The net income attributable to ordinary sharehaldier the nine months ended September 30, 2010 was
primarily driven by $255.4 million of net realizeshd unrealized gains in the Company’s investedtisissel a $39.4
million income tax benefit, offset by a $15.2 nali change in the value of the Company’s long-teetnt ¢arried at
fair value. The income tax benefit was principalhe result of a reconsideration of an uncertain gasition
following a U.S. court tax ruling related to an ffitiated third party.

The net income attributable to ordinary sharehaslder the nine months ended September 30, 2009 was
primarily driven by i) a $1,150.1 million gain ohet de-consolidation of a collateral finance fagilif) a pre-tax
gain of $703.2 million from the sale of a blockldé reinsurance, offset by a $49.8 million incomae expense
associated with the sale of the block of life renasce; iii) $213.0 million of net realized and ealized gains in the
Company’s invested assets; and iv) a $53.5 milljaim on extinguishment of debt.

As of September 30, 2010, SRGL and Scottish Ann&ityife Insurance Company (Cayman) Ltd. (“SALIC")
had a combined $106.4 million of unrestricted agsedmpared to $138.8 million at December 31, 20U%
unrestricted assets of SRGL and SALIC represergtasghich are not held in trust accounts for theeffie of
ceding companies under reinsurance agreementeseTunrestricted assets were available at Septe3@b2010 to
meet the obligations of SRGL and SALIC. There bamo assurances that the amount of unrestriceatsakeld
by SRGL and SALIC will not further decrease fronripd to period in the future or that such decreaikenot be
materially different from period to period in thetdire.



SCOTTISH RE GROUP LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Expressed in Thousands of United States Dollarsxeept share data)

September 30, December 31,
2010 2009
(Unaudited)

ASSETS
Fixed-maturity investments held as trading sea@sitat fair value..................ccccuvviieeeens $ 3,240,559 $ 2,988,164
Preferred stock held as trading securities, atv@ie ................cccccvvvvviccemiiiiiieeeeeeeee. 72,756 77,410
Cash and cash equUIVaIENTS ...........cooo i 312,741 390,025
Other INVESTMENTS ...oeiiiiieiiee et e et e e e st e b e e e e e e nnneee 18,093 21,482
Funds withheld at INtEreSt..........ooi i 582,413 608,500

TOtAl INVESIMENTS. ..ottt ettt n s et es s s 4,226,562 4,085,581
Accrued INterest reCRIVABIE. ..............ceeeeveeeeeeee et n et e 23,785 24,422
Reinsurance balances and risk fees receivable..............cooociiiii e 123,836 161,977
Deferred aCqUISItION COSES ......uuuiiiiiiiiiceeeeee ettt et e e e e e e e e e e e e eeaaes 274,322 296,822
Amounts recoverable from rEINSUIEIS ........ccuceeiiiiiiccee e eeeee e 573,986 606,347
Present value of iN-force bUSINESS ........cccceeeeiiiii e 33,196 38,316
L@ 11 g1 = TS1T =] TP 25,769 67,185
Current income tax reCeiVabIe .............o e 147 12,762
DEFEITEA TAX ASSELS ... veivieeveieei it eeeeeee et e s es st estesste et e s beseesaeesteesbessaesaesomnesreesresaes e 3,922 3,922

TOUAL ASSELS ....vveeeeeee ettt ettt et e et e et e et e et e e eee s e ateeeemeeeeeereeneeeeeaeeeeas $ 5,285,525 $ 5,297,334
LIABILITIES
Reserves for future policy benefits ...t $ 1,457,830 $ 1,542,639
Interest-sensitive contract liabilities .....ccoceeeoeeeiiiiiiiic e 1,434,218 1,518,365
Collateral fINANCE FACHIIIES. ...........c.eeveeeeeeee ettt ettt et e 1,300,000 1,300,000
Accounts payable and other liabilities ..........ccoeiiiii e 52,046 68,921
Embedded derivative liabilities, at fair Value w.........oooeiiiiiiiiiii e 38,387 35,732
Reinsurance balances payable ...........oo e 113,144 137,597
Deferred tax abilities ..........oou i 43,550 50,143
Long-term debt, at fair VAlUE ..........coovicceec oo - 55,068
Long-term debt, @t Par VAIUE................ceccmemereeereeiteeereesteeeteeeteeeessesereesbeessessessneesseesrens, 129,500 129,500

TOtaAl HADIHES ...ttt ettt en s 4,568,675 4,837,965
MEZZANINE EQUITY
Convertible cumulative participating preferredrasa(liquidation preference, $748.1

(10T 1TTo T o ) I PRSPPI 555,857 555,857
Commitments and contingencies (Note 15)

EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Scottish Re Group Limited shareholders’ equity i@@gf
Ordinary shares, par value $0.01:

Issued and outstanding - 68,383,370 shares in @0A@009..............ccoeeiiivviinieennnnnnn, 684 684
Non-cumulative perpetual preferred shares, parevéiOl1:

Issued: 5,000,000 shares (outstanding: 2010 -6/4088; 2009 — 5,000,000)............... 120,152 125,000
Additional Paid-in CAPITAL ........eeieieieei s et r e e e e e e e e e e e e s s e e e e eeeaeeeeeennns 1,218,055 1,217,535
[ ] e 11 =10 o (] {11 | S TOTTRT (1,187,438) (1,447,375)

Total Scottish Re Group Limited shareholders’ eg(deficit)............cccccevvvvvvvremmmmernnns 151,453 (104,156)
[N Lo Yol Tal o [T To a1 (=T =] 9,540 7,668

Total @QUILY (AEFICIL) .....vvveeee et eoeeeee ettt en s n e 160,993 (96,488)

Total liabilities, mezzanine equity and total egUlefiCit).............ccceevreveescmeeeveee $ 5,285,525 $ 5,297,334
! Includes total investments of consolidated vagabterest entities (“VIES).................. $ 1,094,370
2 Includes accrued interest receivable of CONSEAIES .............c.cccovrveeerieereeeeeeenn. $ 1,172
® Reflects collateral finance facilities of consalield VIES ...........cccc.c.oveveeeeemmmmneeevevenenns $ 1,300,000

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financek8tents (Unaudited)



SCOTTISH RE GROUP LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(UNAUDITED)

(Expressed in Thousands of United States Dollarsxeept share data)

Three months ended

Nine months ended

September 30,

September 30,

September 30,

September 30,

2010 2009 2010 2009 (Restated)

Revenues
Premiums earned, Net ............cccocveeiveeecmeeie e, 98,177 $ 104,417 $ 3698 $ 326,283
Fee and other income............ccooooii i, 1,432 2,326 4,221 5,738
Investment income, nNet............oooiicceccemieeeeeeeee 41,014 43,729 129,591 135,723
Net realized and unrealized gains.........cccccceeeen. 88,964 191,098 255,372 212,971
Gain on de-consolidation of collateral finance liaci - - - 1,150,114
Change in value of long-term debt, at fair value ... - - (15,246) -
Gain on extinguishment of debt... - - - 53,545
Change in fair value of embedded derlvatlve

HADIlItIES .ot (3,087) 11,305 (2,655) 304,925

Total FEVENUES ....eeeiiieiiiiiiieeeeee e 226,500 352,875 689,152 2,189,299
Benefits and expenses
Claims and other policy benefits ...........cccceeeeeeen. 79,125 98,333 291,887 (129,174)
Interest credited to interest-sensitive contract

HADIlITIES ..ot 14,003 4,472 40,585 46,391
Amortization of deferred acquisition costs and othe

insurance exXpPenses, Net......cccccccveeeeeeveeveeeeeeeeennn. 28,931 18,854 65,812 93,45
Operating EXPENSES........uurirrrrrreeererieeeeeeererrrreeeeeeees 11,812 7,372 41,755 46,041
Collateral finance facilities expenses.......ccomm....... 10,659 8,829 26,606 31,195
INEEreSt EXPENSE ....vveveereeieeeeie s emeemee e eeeaee e 1,399 1,165 4,021 4,840

Total benefits and eXpPenses...............commmmeeeee. 145,929 149,025 470,666 94,750
Income before income taxes..........ccccceevvvvveernnnns, 80,571 203,850 218,486 2,694
Income tax benefit (EXPENSe)..........cveeeecerrennne.. 3,016 (1,050) 39,445 (53,001)
Consolidated iNnCoOmMe.........cccceeviiiiiieeneee e, 83,587 202,800 257,931 2,548
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest. (1,181) (910) (1,872) (1,202)
Net income attributable to Scottish Re Group

LIMIted ..., 82,406 201,890 256,059 2,040,346
Gain on redemption of non-cumulative perpetual

preferred Shares...........c.oceeveeeeeieeeee e - - 3,878 -
Net income attributable to ordinary shareholders. _$ 82,406 $ 201,890 $ 259,937 $ 2,040,346
Basic income per ordinary share...............cc.c.ee... $ 1.19 $ 2.91 $ 3.74 $ 29.41
Diluted income per ordinary share........................ $ 0.38 $ 0.92 $ 1.20 $ 9.34

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financatk8tents (Unaudited)



SCOTTISH RE GROUP LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (DE FICIT)
(UNAUDITED)

(Expressed in Thousands of United States dollarsxeept share data)

Nine months ended

September 30, September 30,

2010 2009
(Restated)

Share capital:
Ordinary shares:

Beginning and end Of PEIIOM. ............c.eiieeeeeeeeeeeeee e eee ettt re e $ 684 $ 684
Non-cumulative perpetual preferred shares:

Beginning Of PEHIOM ... ...t e e e e e e e 125,000 125,000

Non-cumulative perpetual preferred shares redeemed...............ccceeeveveeeveereeieennns (4,848) -

1o oY i o Y=Y e o RS 120,152 125,000
Additional paid-in capital:

Beginning Of PEHIOM ... ..ot e e e e e e e 1,217,535 1,216,878

(0] 11101 I =D (o 1= £ 1= IR 520 481

[T I} 1= o o SRR 1,218,055 1,217,359
Retained deficit:

Beginning Of PEHIOA ... ... e a e e e e e e e (1,447,375) ,1BR,716)

Net income attributable to Scottish Re Group Lilohite.............oooooeriiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeee, 256,059 2,040,346

Gain on redemption of non-cumulative perpetualgre shares.............c.cccoeveeveeeevememe.. 3,878 -

[T g Lo I o) il oY= T o Lo PP UPRUOPPPPPP (1,187,438) (1,712,370)
Total Scottish Re Group Limited shareholders’ equiy (defiCit) ...........cccceceveveveeveiernenee. $ 151453 $ (369,327)
Noncontrolling interest:

Beginning Of PEHOA ... ..o ee e ee e e e e e e e e e e s e r e e e e e e e aaaeaaaa e 7866 6,966

N[ g ToT o] 1 1= PP TP 1,872 a2

Yo oY i o Y=Y oo SRR 9,540 8,168
Total shareholders’ equity (AEfICIt)............overoireieieeeeeee e $ 160993 $ (361,159)

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financetk8tents (Unaudited)



SCOTTISH RE GROUP LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(UNAUDITED)

(Expressed in Thousands of United States dollars)

Nine months ended

September 30,

September 30,

2010 2009 (Restated)
Operating activities
ConSOlAAtEd INCOME ......ccuviiiiiiciie et eeceeee ettt ettt ettt e et e e e aae e ebe e e ete e eabeesnbeesnreeas $ 257,931 $ 21548
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskl irs@perating activities:
Net realized and UNrealized gaiNS ...... ..o (255,372) (212,971)
Gain on de-consolidation of collateral finance Ci...............cccciiiiiiii - (1,150,114)
Change in value of long-term debt, at fair Value .............oo oo 15,246 -
Gain on extinguishment of debt............oceeei i - (53,545)
Changes in fair value of embedded derivative iBH..............ccceeveeeeiiiiiiiiies 2,655 (304,925)
Amortization of deferred acqUISItioN COSES ..uuuuunriiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiir e 24,467 36,112
Amortization of present value of in-force buSIiNESS...........cccccciiiiiiiiiir e, 5,120 1,193
Write-off of fixed assets associated with the sdlthe Acquired BUSINeSS..........cccvvvvveennn... - 6,021
Amortization of deferred tranSACION COSES . nnurrrrriiiiiiiiiiieiia e 4,627 1,961
Depreciation Of fIXeA @SSELS......oiii i 341 957
(O] ][0 g =3 0[] £ 1S PP URPRPTPP TR 520 481
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accrued INterest reCeIVADIE ...........o i e 637 542
Reinsurance balances and risk fees receivable............cccoccciii, 38,141 261,798
Deferred aCqUISItION COSES.....uuuuuiiiiiiiirrrrrneeeeereetee e e e e e e s e s e s s st rerereaaaeaeaeesseeannnnns (1,967) 2,229
Deferred tax assets and lIabilitIES ........ oo e eeeeereriiereeeeee e e e e e e e (6,593) 49,838
(@1 =T = TSI T £SO 4614 (253,951)
Current income tax receivable and payable .ccccce..evvviviiiiiiiiii 12,621 75
Reserves for future policy benefits, net of amouet®verable from reinsurers................. (52,448) (2,103,251)
Funds withheld at INTEIEST ........oii it 26,087 122952
Interest-sensitive contract liabilities ... (2,197) @a1)
Accounts payable and other liabilities ........ccoooor i (14,225) (274,825)
Embedded derivative liabilities, at fair value...............c.eueee e (2,655) 304,925
Reinsurance balances PAYAbIE ...........coeeciuieeeeeeeeeeee e eee e (24,453) (130,191)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating aCtVIties...............cccvvveeeveeereeseeeeneee s 75,944 (560,092)
Investing activities
Purchases of fixed-maturity iNVESIMENES .....cooiuuiiiiiiii e (688,251) (590,892
Proceeds from sales and maturities of fixed-matimestments ..........cccccccvvevveeeeeeeeeeeeenn, 607,780 890,734
Purchases of preferr@d StOCK.........uuiiiicceccee e e e e e e e e e e e s e e e eeee s (1,847) (80)
Proceeds from sales and maturities of preferretksto.............ccooceciiiiiiiiiie e 11,380 10,649
Purchases of and proceeds from other iNVEStMEEIS, fl.............cocoveeeeeeereireeeeeiemeemeeeeneas 867 (54)
Net cash (used in) provided by investing aCtiVities.............c.ccooveveeeveeereeeeseeeeeeenas (70,071) 310,357
Financing activities
Withdrawals from interest-sensitive contract lidlgh ................coccei (82,187) (161,479)
Redemption of non-cumulative perpetual preferretes..............ccocvvveeeiveeeierieeeeeneans (970) -
Net cash used in fiINANCING ACHVItIES........ccoceereverieieieeeeeceee et es st ee s (83,157) (161,479)
Net change in cash and cash eqQUIVAIENES ....ceeeeciviiiciiie e $ (77,284) $ 1414
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of Periad..............ccccueererieeeeceseecesee e 390,025 824,613
Cash and cash equivalents, Nd Of PO . .ceeweem.vevrvevereeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e eeerese e $ 312,741 $ 413,399

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financatk8tents (Unaudited)



SCOTTISH RE GROUP LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDIT ED)

September 30, 2010

1. Organization and Business
Organization

Scottish Re Group Limited (“SRGL”, the “Company”wé&”, “our” and “us”) is a holding company
incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islanidls @ur principal executive office in Bermuda. Thgh our
operating subsidiaries, we are principally engaigethe reinsurance of life insurance, annuities anduity-type
products. We have principal operating companié€darmuda, the Cayman Islands, Ireland, and theedrtates.

Run Off Strategy

In 2008, we ceased writing new business and ndtifigr existing clients that we would not be accaptiny
new reinsurance risks under existing reinsuraneatitrs, thereby placing our remaining treaties ito-off. We
expect to continue to pursue a run-off strategy tfeg remaining business, whereby we continue teivec
premiums, pay claims, and perform key activitieglamour remaining reinsurance treaties while maiimg
solvency and meeting our obligations to third @arti No assurances can be given that we will beesséul in
maintaining adequate levels of capital and liqyigihile executing this strategy.

While pursuing our run-off strategy, we magnh time to time, if opportunities arise, purchaseprivately
negotiated transactions, open market purchasey endans of general solicitations, tender offersotirerwise,
additional amounts of our outstanding securitied atter liabilities. Any such purchases will depem a variety
of factors including, but not limited, to availabterporate liquidity, capital requirements and aadive pricing
levels. The amounts involved in any such transastitndividually or in the aggregate, may be materfor further
discussion on our outstanding securities, see RotBebt Obligations and Other Funding Arrangeméntaurther,
the Company continues to explore ways to increasergrise value including consideration from tinoetime of
transactions for the sale or disposition of ourifiesses or assets, which transactions individualin the aggregate
may be material.

Regulatory Considerations

We currently operate with certain regulatory coaistis with respect to Scottish Re (U.S.), Inc. ((&R), our
primary U.S. reinsurance subsidiary. In connectidth the receipt by SRUS in late 2008 of a peritstatutory
accounting practice related to the reduction frahility for reinsurance ceded to an unauthorizesuaning insurer
(the “Permitted Practice”), SRUS consented to teguance by the Delaware Department of Insurance (th
“Department”) on January 5, 2009, of an Order ope&uision for SRUS (the “Order of Supervision”), in
accordance with 18 Del. C. §85942. The Order ofe®upion required, among other things, the Depantiee
consent to any transaction by SRUS outside thenargdicourse of business and to any transaction @rithny
distribution or payment to its affiliates. Theginal Order of Supervision subsequently was amemaheldreplaced
with an Extended and Amended Order of Supervisiated April 3, 2009 (the “Amended Order”), which emds
and clarifies certain matters contained within trginal Order of Supervision. See Note 12, “Redody and
Rating Agency Matters”.

Business

We have written reinsurance business that is whallypartially retained in one or more of our reir@ice
subsidiaries. With the sale of our Wealth Managantmisiness and Life Reinsurance International S&grin
2008, and the subsequent sale of a block of indalidife reinsurance business in our Life Reinsaeaiorth
America Segment (the “Acquired Business”, as mahy flefined in Note 13, “Sale of a Block of LifeeRisurance
North America Business”) in the first quarter of020) operating decisions and performance assessroéiite
Company are now performed without reference to separate segments. Accordingly, we do not present
information about distinct operating segments fenigus after January 1, 2009.



SCOTTISH RE GROUP LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDIT ED)
September 30, 2010
1. Organization and Business (continued)

We have assumed risks associated with primaryitigirance, annuities, and annuity-type policies.e W
reinsure mortality, investment, persistency, angease risks of life insurance and reinsurance corepabased in
the United States. Most of the reinsurance assustiough automatic treaties, but we also assuree@in risks
on a facultative basis. We suspended bidding fow musiness in 2008, and at that time, we issuditaso
cancelling the acceptance of new reinsurance fimksll open reinsurance treaties. The businesdig®rically
have written falls into two categories: Traditio®allutions and Financial Solutions, as detailed\wel

Traditional SolutionsWe reinsure the mortality risk on life insurammaicies written by primary insurers. The
business often is referred to as traditional linsurance. We wrote our Traditional Solutions bess
predominantly on an automatic basis. This meansvieaautomatically reinsured all policies written & ceding
company that met the underwriting criteria spedifie the treaty with the ceding company.

Financial Solutions Financial Solutions include contracts under whislk assumed the investment and
persistency risks of existing, as well as newlytteri, blocks of business. The products reinsuretide annuities
and annuity-type products, cash value life insueaand, to a lesser extent, disability products éina in a pay-out
phase.

Life insurance products that we reinsure includarlyerenewable term, term with multi-year guarastee
ordinary life, and variable life. Retail annuityopucts that we reinsure include fixed deferreduéties and variable
annuities. For these products, we wrote reinswaanerally in the form of yearly renewable terminsurance or
modified coinsurance. Under yearly renewable temm,share only in the mortality risk for which weceive a
premium. In a coinsurance or modified coinsurasrangement, we generally share proportionatebllimaterial
risks inherent in the underlying policies, incluglimortality, lapses and investments. Under sucheagents, we
agree to indemnify the primary insurer for all opartion of the risks associated with the undedyinsurance
policy in exchange for a proportionate share ofrpuens. Coinsurance differs from modified coinswemwith
respect to the ownership of the assets suppotti@gedserves. Under our coinsurance arrangememtership of
these assets is transferred to us, whereas in imdifoinsurance arrangements, the ceding compa@aynse
ownership of these assets, but we share in thetiment income and risks associated with the assets.

2. Basis of presentation
Basis of Presentation

Accounting Principles - Our consolidated financsdtements are prepared in accordance with acogunti
principles generally accepted in the United State#\merica (“U.S. GAAP”). Accordingly, these congtdted
interim financial statements do not include all theormation and footnotes required by US GAAP &mual
financial statements. These unaudited consolidatedim financial statements should be read in wociion with
both the annual consolidated financial statememdsrates thereto for the year ended December 3B.20

Consolidation - The consolidated financial statets@mclude the assets, liabilities, and resultsdrations of
SRGL, its subsidiaries, and all variable intera#tities for which we are the primary beneficiarg, @efined in
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Acating Standards Codification (*“ASC”) Subtopic 810;1
Consolidation — Overall (“FASB ASC 810-10"). Alignificant inter-company transactions and balarizese been
eliminated in consolidation. We consolidate two mecourse securitizations: Orkney Holdings, LLM&aware
limited liability company (“Orkney I”) and Orkney@RlII plc, a special purpose vehicle incorporatedeurthe laws
of Ireland (“Orkney Re 11"). Effective January 2009, we no longer consolidate Ballantyne Re pRa(fantyne
Re"). For further discussion of Orkney I, Orknéwihd Ballantyne Re, see Note 14, “Collateral FogaRacilities”.
Effective October 8, 2009, we consolidated the @tig Pass-Through Trust and the Stingray InvestastlI For
further discussion of these entities, see Note @btiDbligations and Other Funding Arrangements”.



SCOTTISH RE GROUP LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDIT ED)
September 30, 2010
2. Basis of presentation (continued)

Restatement of Prior Financial Statements - Dutiregfourth quarter of 2009, we identified an ew$49.8
million in the tax accounting following the saletbe Acquired Business, as described in Note 1Blaionover Re,
representing deferred tax liabilities that revefskbowing the expiration of net operating losses applicable
jurisdictions. This error caused us to understatmme tax expense for the three months ended Maidch
2009. We restated the statement of income anédhgings per share amounts for the three monthsdeltarch
31, 2009, and for the nine months ended Septenthe2®9, to reflect the increase in income tax azpeof $49.8
million. The restatement of the prior financiahtstments as a result of the error in tax accountiogeased our
shareholders’ deficit as of September 30, 2009 #&19.5 million to $369.3 million, and decreased basic and
diluted earnings per share attributable to ordirsdngreholders for the nine months ended Septenthe2089 from
$30.13 per share and $9.57 per share, respectteeb9.41 per share and $9.34 per share, respbctifThere was
no impact to our year ended December 31, 2009muetnie or shareholders’ deficit because the adjustmes
properly recorded in the annual consolidated firgrstatements.

Comprehensive Income — There are no items of atberprehensive income included in the consolidated
statements of income and, therefore, net incomibatthble to ordinary shareholders is the sameoagpecehensive
income attributable to ordinary shareholders.

Noncontrolling Interest in Consolidated Entity —idontrolling interest represents the 5% of ScotRehLife
Corporation (“SRLC"), a U.S. reinsurance subsidi@ingt is not owned by SRGL. The consolidated faian
statements include all assets, liabilities, reverara expenses of SRLC. In accordance with FASB A&pic 810,
references in these consolidated financial staté&srternet income attributable to SRGL, net incortebaitable to
ordinary shareholders, and shareholders’ equitfidigeattributable to SRGL do not include the nontrolling
interest, which is reported separately.

Going Concern - These consolidated interim findnsi@tements and the annual consolidated financial
statements as of December 31, 2009 have been pdepsing accounting principles applicable to a g@ancern,
which contemplates the realization of assets aad#tisfaction of liabilities and commitments ie fiormal course
of business. Our ability to continue as a goingceon is dependent upon our ability to successfoiBet our
obligations in a manner that addresses ongoingatgy requirements and capital, liquidity, andlatral needs.
There can be no assurance that any of the actiertsawe taken or plan to take will be successfsuipplying funds
in the amounts and at the times necessary to medigoidity requirements in future periods. Thesmsolidated
financial statements do not give effect to any sijents to recorded amounts or to their classifinavhich would
be necessary if we were unable to continue asrgggancern.

In the event that for any reason we fail to compith the Department’'s Amended Order, or in the ¢vha
financial condition of SRUS was to materially deteaste, the Department may take action to seizérobof SRUS
under applicable insurance law. Such a seizurddyolace control of all management decisions of SRuith the
Department, including with respect to controllirgsh flows, settling claims and paying obligatiorihe primary
objective of the Department would be to protectititerests of the ceding insurers (and their pblidglers) with
whom SRUS has contracted and would not be to prettecinterests of SRGL, Scottish Annuity & Lifesiirance
Company (Cayman) Ltd. (“SALIC"), the shareholders,any other stakeholders of the Company. A seizir
SRUS would have numerous consequences, and cadddehe need for SALIC and/or SRGL to seek baptiesu
protection.

Estimates, Risks and Uncertainties - The preparaifoconsolidated financial statements in confoyniith
U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimatesasadmptions that affect the amounts reported én th
consolidated financial statements and accompanyioigs. Actual results could differ materially frothose
estimates and assumptions used by management. @tisignificant assumptions are for:

* investment valuation;
» accounting for derivative instruments;
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» assessment of risk transfer for structured inswamel reinsurance contracts;

» estimates of premiums;

» valuation of present value of in-force business;

» establishment of reserves for future policy besgfit

e amortization of deferred acquisition costs;

* retrocession arrangements and amounts recoverabteréinsurers;

* interest-sensitive contract liabilities;

* long-term debt, at fair value; and

* income taxes, deferred taxes, and the determinafiassociated valuation allowances.

We review and revise these estimates, as apprepAaty adjustments made to these estimates aexted in
the period in which the estimates are revised.

All tabular amounts are reported in thousands otddnStates dollars, except share and per shage diats
otherwise noted.

3. Recent Accounting Pronouncements
FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and El@sure

In January 2010, the FASB issued an upaateduire a number of additional disclosures reiggrthir value
measurements. Specifically, the update requiresparting entity to disclose the amounts of sigaffictransfers
between Level 1 and Level 2 of the three tier Yailue hierarchy and the reasons for these transieraell as the
reasons for any transfers in or out of Level 3e@if/e for annual and interim periods beginningraBecember 15,
2009. The update also requires information in #wonciliation of recurring Level 3 measurementsutlpairchases,
sales, issuances, and settlements on a gross é&ffsctive for annual and interim periods beginnafter December
15, 2010. We adopted this update in its entiratgluding early adoption of the additional Levelr8ormation,
effective January 1, 2010. The adoption of thisatpdhad no effect on our financial position or tsswf
operations.

FASB ASC Topic 810, Consolidation

In June 2009, the FASB issued an updateASB ASC Topic 810. This update requires an enisgpto
perform an analysis to determine whether the erigerg variable interest or variable interests give controlling
financial interest in a VIE. This update also regsiongoing reassessments of whether an enterpttise primary
beneficiary of a VIE and is effective as of the ibegng of each reporting entity’s first annual rejreg period that
begins after November 15, 2009, for interim periadthin the first annual reporting period, and foterim and
annual reporting periods thereafter. Earlier agpiin was prohibited. We adopted this update éffectanuary 1,
2010. The adoption of this update resulted in tafthl disclosures but had no effect on our finahpiosition or
results of operations. As a result of adopting thipdate, we now separately disclose on the Caladeti Balance
Sheet of SRGL, the assets of the consolidated WHE ¢an only be used to settle obligations of thE ®nd the
liabilities of the consolidated VIE for which créglis have no recourse on the general accounts @GLSR

4, Investments

Trading securities are recorded at fair value, amealized gains and losses on trading securitesnaluded
in earnings. Interest is recorded, based upoadstaiupon rates, as a component of net investmeairie.

The amount of net unrealized gains for the threamthmended September 30, 2010 and 2009, that getate
trading securities still held at September 30, 28d@ 2009 are $78.9 million and $166.8 million pexdively.
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The amount of net unrealized gains for the nine thoended September 30, 2010 and 2009, that retates
trading securities still held at September 30, 284@ 2009 are $218.9 million and $153.8 milliorspectively.

5. Fair Value Measurements

FASB ASC 820 defines fair value, establishes a &aork for measuring fair value based on an exitepri
definition, establishes a fair value hierarchy loase the quality of inputs used to measure faiu@ahnd enhances
disclosure requirements for fair value measuremdris hierarchy gives the highest priority to unatipd quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets abilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowesorityi to
unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). Tleetlavels of the fair value hierarchy under FASBCA®R0 are
described below:

Level 1 — Quoted prices for identical instrumemtaictive markets.

Level 2 — Quoted prices for similar instrumentsactive markets; quoted prices for identical or &Emi
instruments in markets that are not active; and ehddrived valuations in which all significant irfpuand
significant value drivers are observable in actiarkets.

Level 3 — Model-derived valuations in which onemore significant inputs or significant value driseare
unobservable.

As required by FASB ASC 820, when the inputs usetheasure fair value fall within different leveltbe
hierarchy, the level within which the fair value aserement is categorized is based on the lowest ilgput that is
significant to the fair value measurement in itrety. Thus, a Level 3 fair value measurement nmajude inputs
that are observable (Level 1 and 2) and unobsex\élelvel 3).

Level 1 primarily consists of financial instrumemihose value is based on quoted market prices, asiplublic
equities and actively-traded mutual fund investraent

Level 2 includes those financial instruments that walued by independent pricing services or valusidg
models or other valuation methodologies. These isodee primarily industry-standard models that oders
various inputs, such as interest rate, credit shread foreign exchange rates for the underlyinwaricial
instruments. All significant inputs are observabiederived from observable information in the maplkace or are
supported by observable levels at which transastare executed in the marketplace. Financial ingnis in this
category primarily include: certain public and @ate corporate fixed-maturity and equity securitgsyernment or
agency securities; certain mortgage and asset-aga@urities; securities held as collateral; amplegmted assets.

Level 3 is comprised of financial instruments whéeie value is estimated based on non-binding brgkiEes
or internally-developed models or methodologies théize significant inputs that not based on orroborated by
readily-available market information. This categgmymarily consists of certain less liquid fixed4twaty and
equity securities where we cannot corroborate figaificant valuation inputs with market observaldata.
Additionally, the Company’s embedded derivativel, cd which are associated with reinsurance treatigre
classified in Level 3 since their values includgn#icant unobservable inputs associated with a@lassumptions
regarding policyholder behavior.

At each reporting period, we classify all assets lgbilities in their entirety based on the lowkstel of input
that is significant to the fair value measureméhir assessment of the significance of a partianlaut to the fair
value measurement requires judgment, and condaetr's specific to the asset or liability.

The fair values for the majority of our fixed-matursecurities are classified as Level 2. TheseValues are
obtained primarily from independent pricing sergigehich utilize Level 2 inputs. The pricing sengaaso utilize
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proprietary pricing models to produce estimate$aofvalue primarily utilizing Level 2 inputs alongith certain
Level 3 inputs.

The proprietary pricing models include matrix pmigiwhere expected cash flows are discounted uigizi
market interest rates obtained from third-partyrses based on the credit quality and duration efitistrument to
fair value. For securities that may not be religbticed using internally-developed pricing moddisgker quotes
are obtained. These broker quotes representiapree, but the assumptions used to establisHaevalue may
not be observable, and, as a result, the fair gadve classified as Level 3.

Long-term debt at fair value (i.e., outstandingsPa@krough Certificates held by third parties) hasrbvalued
using Level 2 inputs for the determination of feédue. The fair value was derived with referencéraded prices
for identical liabilities.

The interest rate swap derivative has been valgsadyu_evel 2 inputs including forward interest satierived
from observable information in the market place.

The embedded derivative liabilities for funds withdh at interest include the embedded derivativesltiag
from assumed modified coinsurance (“modco”) or samance funds withheld in accordance with the edlat
reinsurance arrangements. These values are basedthe difference between the fair values of thdeulying
assets backing the modco or coinsurance funds @ldhieceivable and the fair values of the undegyiabilities.
The fair values of the underlying assets genemaiéybased upon observable market data using v@uatethods
similar to those used for assets held directly &y The fair values of the liabilities are deteratrby using market-
observable swap rates as well as some unobservghlts, such as actuarial assumptions regardingybalder
behavior. These assumptions require significamagament judgment, and the resulting fair valuesctassified
as Level 3.

The following tables set forth our assets and li#s that are measured at fair value on a reegrbasis as of
the dates indicated:

September 30, 2010

(U.S. dollars in millions) Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Investments
Government SECUNtIES™ .......eeevveeeeeieeeeeeieeeeeeeeenn $ 94.2 $ - $ 94.0 $ 0.2
Corporate SECUNtIES™ ......cvvvveeeeeeeiiiiieeeeeeceeeeeeee, 1,296.3 - 1,187.8 108.5
Municipal bonds*...........ccccoiiiiiiiiiirr s 59.9 - 59.9 -
Mortgage and asset-backed securities* ............. 1,790.2 - 1,298.3 491.9
Preferred StOCK ......ccoovveieiiiiiiiiiiiiiccccee e 72.7 - 16.3 56.4
EQUILY™ o vee ettt nmee e sveesae e 11 11 - -
Total assets at fair Value ................oceemmmeeeeenseneenns P 3,314.4 $ 1.1 $ 2,656.3 $ 657.0
Embedded derivative liabilities for Funds withhald
1] (= (=] SRR (3.4 - - (38.4)
Total liabilities at fair Value..........coovoveeeeeereeeerenennn. $ (384) $ - $ - $ (38.4)

*Included in Fixed-maturity investments held as
trading securities, at fair value in the Consokdit
Balance Sheets

A Included in Other investments in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets
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5. Fair Value Measurements (continued)

December 31, 2009

(U.S. dollars in millions) Total Level 2 Level 3
INVESIMENES ....ovieiiie e
Government SECUNtIES™ .......ueeeveeieeeeeeeiiieeeeeeeeen, $ 104.6 - $ 1044 $ 0.2
Corporate SECUNtIES™ ......cvvvvveeeeeeiiiiieeeeeeieeeeeeee, 1,166.3 - 1,033.0 133.3
Municipal bonds*...........ccccoiiiiiiiiirr s 43.8 - 43.8 -
Mortgage and asset-backed securities* ............. 1,673.5 - 1,200.7 243
Preferred StoCK ........coovvviieiiiiieeeeeeeeee e 77.4 - 24.0 53.4
BEQUILY ™ e s 3.7 3.7 - -
Derivatives — interest rate SWap#..........cceeeeuven..... 25.9 - 25.9 -
Total assets at fair ValUE ..........c.c.vecoeeeeeeeeerenaenrs D 3,095.2 $ 3.7% 2,431.8 $ 659.7
Embedded derivative liabilities for Funds withhald
INEEIEST .t e (35.7) - - 5(3)
Long-term debt, at fair value................cceemvevevnne... (55.1) - (55.1) -
Total liabilities at fair value...............ccoceevvveveeenenne. $ (90.8) $ - $ (55.1) $ (35.7)

*Included in Fixed-maturity investments held as
trading securities, at fair value in the Consokdit
Balance Sheets

" Included in Other investments in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets

# Included in Other assets in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets
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The following tables present additional informatmlmout assets measured at fair value on a reclrdasig and
for which we have utilized significant unobservafilevel 3) inputs to determine fair value:

Fair Value Measurements Using Significant Unobsenale Inputs (Level 3) for the nine month period endd September 30, 2010

Embedded
derivative
Mortgage liabilities for
and asset- Funds
(U.S. dollars in Government Corporate Municipal backed Preferred withheld at
millions) securities securities bonds securities stock interest Total
Beginning balance at
January 1, 2010Q..... $ 02% 1333  $ - $ 472.8 534 % (35.7) $ f&r4
Total realized and
unrealized gains
(losses) included
in net income....... - 5.3 - 92.9 3.1 (2.7) 98.6
Purchases,
issuances, and
settlements............ - (26.2) 9.9 (51.1) - - (67.4)
Transfers in and/or
out of Level 3,
1Y SO - (3.9) (9.9) (22.7) (0.1) - (36.6)
Ending balance at
September 30, 2010$ 02% 1085 $ - % 4919 $ 56.4 $ (38.4) $ 618.6

In 2010, changes in classifications impacting Le¥dihancial instruments are reported as transfefsut) of
the Level 3 category as of the end of the quartevhich the transfer occurs. The portion of neteatized gains for
the three and nine months ended September 30,tBafleelates to Level 3 trading securities stilldhat September
30, 2010 and 2009 were $30.9 million and $83.2iom|lrespectively.

Fair Value Measurements Using Significant Unobservae Inputs (Level 3) for the year ended December 32009

Embedded
derivative
Fixed-maturity liabilities for
investments & Funds withheld
(U.S. dollars in millions) Preferred stock at interest Total
Beginning balance at January 1, 2009 .......cc..... $ 9216 % (3475) $ 574.1
Transfers attributable to deconsolidation of
Ballantyne Re (Note 13) ......ccccvviiiieiiienieennnnnn. (108.6) - (108.6)
Total realized and unrealized gains (losses)
included in netincome.............cooceeeeeveeveeeeeeennn. (16.9) 311.8 294.9
Purchases, issuances, and settlements............. (43.8) - (43.8)
Transfers in and/or out of Level 3, net................ (92.6) - (92.6)
Ending balance at December 31, 2009............... $ 659.7 $ (35.7) $ 624.0
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In 2009, reclassifications impacting Level 3 finmhdinstruments are reported as transfers in (oithe Level
3 category as of the beginning of the quarter iictvithe transfer occurs.

6. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

As discussed above, the fair values of financiaets and liabilities are estimated in accordandf thie
framework established under FASB ASC 820. The oulogy for determining the fair value of financial
instruments, in addition to those disclosed in NgtéFair Value Measurements” are as follows:

0] Other investments primarily consist of policy loaaad their carrying values are deemed to
approximate fair value.

(i) Funds withheld at interest represent fixed-mattntyestments held by ceding companies and the fair
values of the underlying instruments are consisiétit the methodologies and assumptions used terate the
fair value of fixed maturities carried at fair valuAny difference between carrying value and faitue of funds
withheld at interest resulting from a change ir fealue of the fixed-maturity investments held lhe tceding
company is included as a component of the embededegative at fair value. We have refined our faiue
estimation methodology as at September 30, 201d) hane revised the estimated fair value as at Dbeer81,
2009 to be consistent.

(iii) Fair values for collateral finance facilities aretermined with reference to underlying business
models and observable market inputs. We haveegfour fair value estimation methodology as at&uaper 30,
2010, and have revised the estimated fair valus Becember 31, 2009 to be consistent.

(iv) Fair values for long-term debt, at par (i.e., autsling trust preferred securities) were determined
with reference to similar quoted securities antlseents of other Company long-term debt during®8iad 2009.

(v) Interest-sensitive contract liabilities include @stment contracts. The fair value of investment
contracts, which exclude significant mortality risk based on the cash surrender value of theliliabias an
approximation of the exit market.
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6. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (continued)
September 30, 2010 December 31, 2009
Carrying Estimated Fair Carrying Estimated Fair
(U.S. dollars in thousands) Value Value Value Value
Assets
Fixed-maturity
investments held as
trading securities, at
fairvalue.........cccccvvvvvieeennn. $ 3,240,559 $ 3,240,559 $ 2,988,164 $ 2,988,164
Preferred stock held as
trading securities, at
fairvalue ..........cocovvvvvvveennn, 72,756 72,756 77,410 77,410
Other investments..................... 18,093 18,093 21,482 21,482
Funds withheld at interest........ 582,413 582,413 608,500 608,500
Derivatives — interest
rate swap# ......cccceeeeeeeeeeeeeenn. - - 25,924 25,924
Liabilities
Collateral finance facilities....... $ 1,300,000 $ 801,191 $ 1,300,000 818,864
Long term debt, at fair
value .....ooovvviiieiiieieeeeeeeeeii, - - 55,068 55,068
Long-term debt, at par
value .....ocvvvviiiiiiieieeeieieeeeia, 129,500 53,976 129,500 32,375
Investment contracts............. 1,434,218 1,413,700 1,518,365 1,485,554
Embedded derivative
liabilities at fair value.......... 38,387 38,387 35,732 35,732

# Included in Other
assets in the
Consolidated Balance
Sheets
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Long-term debt consists of:

(U.S. dollars in thousands) September 30, 2010 December 31, 2009
Capital securities due 2032..........ccooiiceceiiiiiiiieeeee $ 17,500 $ 17,500
Preferred trust securities due 2033 .......occeeeeeeeeeeennn. 20,000 20,000
Trust preferred securities due 2033 .......ccccccceeeeennnn. 10,000 10,000
Trust preferred securities due 2034 .......cccccceeeeen.... 32,000 32,000
Trust preferred securities due 2034 ........ccccceu.......... 50,000 50,000
Long-term debt, at par value................cceeeerrreeeerrnnnn. $ 129,500 $ 129,500
Outstanding Pass-Through Certificates..................... $ - $ 55,068
Long-term debt, at fair ValUE ...............eceemeevrverrrrns $ - $ 55,068

Capital Securities Due 2032

On December 4, 2002, Scottish Holdings StatutonysiTt, a Connecticut statutory business trust (i@ap
Trust”) issued and sold in a private offering amragate of $17.5 million Floating Rate Capital Séms (the
“Capital Securities”). All of the common sharestbé Capital Trust are owned by Scottish Holdings, (“SHI"),
one of our wholly-owned subsidiaries.

The Capital Securities mature on December 4, 2088y are redeemable in whole or in part at any tfter
December 4, 2007. Interest is payable quarterly r@te equivalent to three-month LIBOR plus 4% .S&ptember
30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, the interest wmées 4.29% and 4.25%, respectively. The CapitakiTmay
defer payment of the interest for up to 20 congeewjuarterly periods, but no later than Decemhe2082. Any
deferred payments would accrue interest quarterla compounded basis if SHI defers interest orDibieentures
due December 4, 2032 (as described below).

The sole assets of the Capital Trust consist of igilBon principal amount of Floating Rate Debemsir(the
“Debentures”) issued by SHI. The Debentures matmréecember 4, 2032, and interest is payable qladta
rate equivalent to three-month LIBOR plus 4%. Apteenber 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, the inteates
were 4.29% and 4.25%, respectively. SHI may defgmment of the interest for up to 20 consecutivertguky
periods, but no later than December 4, 2032. Anferded payments would accrue interest quarterlyaon
compounded basis. SHI may redeem the Debentuaasydtme after December 4, 2007, and in the eveoédain
changes in tax or investment company law.

SALIC has guaranteed SHI's obligations under thedp¢ures and distributions and other payments dube
Capital Securities.

Preferred Trust Securities Due 2033

On October 29, 2003, Scottish Holdings, Inc. Statufrust I, a Connecticut statutory businesstt{USapital
Trust 11") issued and sold in a private offering @aygregate of $20 million Preferred Trust Secigifthe “Preferred
Trust Securities”). All of the common shares of @aprrust 1l are owned by SHI.

The Preferred Trust Securities mature on OctobeR@83. They are redeemable in whole or in paahgttime
after October 29, 2008. Interest is payable quriatr a rate equivalent to three-month LIBOR plu8586. At
September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, the#ttertes were 4.24% and 4.20%, respectively. RyiGrctober
29, 2008, interest cannot exceed 12.45%. CapitadtTl may defer payment of the interest for u2@oconsecutive
quarterly periods, but no later than October 2830ny deferred payments would accrue interesttgug on a
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compounded basis if SHI defers interest on the Zl88ting Rate Debentures due October 29, 2038¢dasribed
below).

The sole assets of Capital Trust Il consist of 628illion principal amount of Floating Rate Debeets (the
“2033 Floating Rate Debentures”) issued by SHI. 2883 Floating Rate Debentures mature on OctobeP@33,
and interest is payable quarterly at three-monBQR plus 3.95%. At September 30, 2010 and DecerBber
2009, the interest rates were 4.24% and 4.20%gctisply. SHI may defer payment of the interest dprto 20
consecutive quarterly periods, but no later thatoer 29, 2033. Any deferred payments would acdnterest
guarterly on a compounded basis. SHI may redeerQB8 Floating Rate Debentures at any time aftéolr 29,
2008, and in the event of certain changes in tarw@astment company law.

SALIC has guaranteed SHI's obligations under th@32Bloating Rate Debentures and distributions ghdro
payments due on the Preferred Trust Securities.

Trust Preferred Securities Due 2033

On November 14, 2003, GPIC Holdings Inc. Statutdryst, a Delaware statutory business trust (“GPIC
Trust”) issued and sold in a private offering agragate of $10 million Trust Preferred Securitige (‘2033 Trust
Preferred Securities”). All of the common share&&1C Trust are owned by SHI.

The 2033 Trust Preferred Securities mature on $dme 30, 2033. They are redeemable in whole oait gt
any time after September 30, 2008. Interest is lpayquarterly at a rate equivalent to three-montBQR plus
3.90%. At September 30, 2010 and December 31,,20@9interest rates were 4.19% and 4.15%, resgdgeti
GPIC Trust may defer payment of the interest fortap20 consecutive quarterly periods, but no latem
September 30, 2033.

Any deferred payments would accrue interest qugrtam a compounded basis if SHI defers interestten
Junior Subordinated Notes due September 30, 2@38escribed below).

The sole assets of GPIC Trust consist of $10.3ianilprincipal amount of Junior Subordinated Notte (
“Junior Subordinated Notes”) issued by SHI. TheiduSubordinated Notes mature on September 30, ,2833
interest is payable quarterly at three-month LIB@&s 3.90%. At September 30, 2010 and Decembe?(®19, the
interest rates were 4.19% and 4.15%, respecti@Hy.may defer payment of the interest for up toc@@secutive
quarterly periods, but no later than Septembe2883. Any deferred payments would accrue intereattgrly on a
compounded basis. SHI may redeem the Junior Sutaiedi Notes at any time after September 30, 20@Binathe
event of certain changes in tax or investment compewv.

SALIC has guaranteed SHI's obligations under theiatuSubordinated Notes and distributions and other
payments due on the trust preferred securities.

Trust Preferred Securities Due 2034

On May 12, 2004, Scottish Holdings, Inc. Statutdryst Ill, a Connecticut statutory business tru§tapital
Trust 111") issued and sold in a private offering aggregate of $32 million Trust Preferred Secsitithe “2034
Trust Preferred Securities”). All of the common gsaof Capital Trust Il are owned by SHI.

The 2034 Trust Preferred Securities mature on 1un€034. They are redeemable in whole or in paang
time after June 17, 2009. Interest is payable gqugrat a rate equivalent to three-month LIBOR pBu80%. At
September 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009, theestteate was 4.09% and 4.05%, respectively. Poidute 17,
2009, interest could not exceed 12.50%. Capitastliilimay defer payment of the interest for uRfbconsecutive
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quarterly periods, but no later than June 17, 2084 deferred payments would accrue interest qdgrten a
compounded basis if SHI defers interest on the 28l84ting Rate Debentures due June 17, 2034 (agided
below).

The sole assets of Capital Trust Il consist of $&8ion principal amount of Floating Rate Debemsir(the
“2034 Floating Rate Debentures”) issued by SHI. Z884 Floating Rate Debentures mature on June34,2nd
interest is payable quarterly at three-month LIB@&s 3.80%. At September 30, 2010 and Decembe2(®19, the
interest rate was 4.09% and 4.05%, respectivelgr By June 17, 2009, interest could not excee8. SHI may
defer payment of the interest for up to 20 conseeuquarterly periods, but no later than June 10342 Any
deferred payments would accrue interest quarterlg compounded basis. SHI may redeem the 2034ifdoRate
Debentures at any time after June 17, 2009, atitkievent of certain changes in tax or investmentgany law.

SALIC has guaranteed SHI's obligations under th@42Bloating Rate Debentures and distributions ghdro
payments due on the 2034 Trust Preferred Securities

Trust Preferred Securities Due 2034

On December 18, 2004, SFL Statutory Trust |, a Wafe statutory business trust (“SFL Trust I") isswnd
sold in a private offering an aggregate of $50 iomll Trust Preferred Securities (the “December 203dst
Preferred Securities” and, together with the 2084sTPreferred Securities, the 2033 Trust PrefeBeclirities, the
Preferred Trust Securities and the Capital Seestitthe “Capital and Trust Preferred Securitie&tl). of the
common shares of SFL Trust | are owned by Scoftishncial (Luxembourg) S.a.r.| (“SFL").

The December 2034 Trust Preferred Securities matui@ecember 15, 2034. They are redeemable in vdrole
in part at any time after December 15, 2009. Isteiepayable quarterly at a rate equivalent teafmonth LIBOR
plus 3.50%. At September 30, 2010 and DecembeR@®19, the interest rate was 3.79% and 3.75%, rdsphc
Prior to December 15, 2009, interest could not edcE.50%. SFL Trust | may defer payment of theragt for up
to 20 consecutive quarterly periods, but no lat@ntDecember 15, 2034. Any deferred payments waatdue
interest quarterly on a compounded basis if SFemdahterest on the 2034 Floating Rate Debentuwedcember
15, 2034 (as described below).

The sole assets of SFL Trust | consist of $51.8ionilprincipal amount of Floating Rate Debenturéee (
“December 2034 Floating Rate Debentures”) issue&bly. The December 2034 Floating Rate Debenturdsrma
on December 15, 2034, and interest is payable ejlyet three-month LIBOR plus 3.50%. At Septemb@r2010
and December 31, 2009, the interest rate was 3a18%3.75%, respectively. Prior to December 15, 20@8rest
could not exceed 12.50%. SFL may defer paymerti@irterest for up to 20 consecutive quarterlyqasj but no
later than December 15, 2034. Any deferred paymeatdd accrue interest quarterly on a compoundesisb&FL
may redeem the December 2034 Floating Rate Delemnairany time after December 15, 2009, and irveat of
certain changes in tax or investment company law.

SALIC has guaranteed SFL’s obligations under thedb®er 2034 Floating Rate Debentures and distabsiti
and other payments due on the December 2034 TrefdrRed Securities.

Stingray Investor Trust and Stingray Pass-Throughust (together “Stingray”)

On January 12, 2005, SALIC entered into a put agese with the Stingray Investor Trust for an agateg
value of $325 million, which put agreement relates$325 million aggregate stated amount of 5.90246sP
Through Certificates (the “Pass-Through Certifisdtéssued by the Stingray Pass-Through Trust (togewith the
Stingray Investor Trust, “Stingray”). Under thents of the put agreement, we acquired an irrevecabt option to
issue funding agreements to the Stingray InvestastTin return for the assets in a portfolio of & commercial
paper.
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As of April 14, 2008, this facility was fully utiied and $325 million of funding agreements weraddsto the
Stingray Investor Trust.

Throughout 2009, we acquired Pass-Through Certificin privately-negotiated purchases which reprtese
reconsideration events under FASB ASC 810-10. ‘¥é&xlwa quantitative analysis in determining thathibigler of
the majority of the Pass-Through Certificates waalidorb the majority of the expected gains or bsdeStingray.
As a result of these acquisitions, by October §920ve had acquired Pass-Through Certificates wittated
amount of $169.4 million. This holding representieel majority of the Pass-Through Certificatesreéfare, at that
time, we determined we were the primary benefic@rgtingray, and we were able to consolidate $&ipgn our
consolidated financial statements. The consobdadif Stingray has been recorded in accordanceA#@ 810-10,
which requires us to recognize the assets acquited liabilities assumed, and any noncontrollingefiest in
Stingray at the acquisition date, measured at fagivalues as of that date. We are also requivegliminate any
inter-company balances and transactions. The @ngfructure included an interest rate swap (theefest Rate
Swap”) as a mechanism for charging interest to $Abh the funding agreements at a variable intewdst and
paying interest to the Pass-Through Certificateléxd at a fixed rate. The Interest Rate Swap wasdad in Other
Assets at a fair value of $25.9 million on our Gulittated Balance Sheets as at December 31, 20@&eients in
the fair value of the Interest Rate Swap were ihetliin net realized and unrealized income (losseghe
Consolidated Statements of Income.

On December 15, 2009, pursuant to a cash tender tfat had been launched on November 16, 2009, we
acquired $57.3 million in aggregate stated amodirRass-Through Certificates. As a result, as ofebeber 31,
2009, we had repurchased $226.7 million in aggeegtted amount of the Pass-Through Certificatasjng $98.3
million outstanding with non-affiliated investors.

In January 2010, we acquired, in a privately-neget transaction, an additional $18.1 million ofmgate
stated amount of Pass-Through Certificates.

During July and August 2010, we acquired, througivabely-negotiated transactions, an additional .$55
million and $8 thousand, respectively, of aggregsated amount of Pass-Through Certificates. hjurwtion with
the July acquisitions, we obtained consent fromsbliers to proposed amendments to certain ofreresaction-
related documents. The proposed amendments profadélde termination of the Interest Rate Swapaite July
2, 2010. The termination of the Interest Rate Swvemulted in a swap termination payment to the &indgrass-
Through Trust of $39.2 million (the “Swap TermimatiPayment”), which amount subsequently was disteith on
the July 12, 2010 payment date pro rata to alfidrsl of record of Pass-Through Certificates asuo& B0, 2010,
including the July sellers. As a result of its @rship as of June 30, 2010 of $244.8 million inraggte stated
amount of Pass-Through Certificates, SALIC recei$26.5 million of the Swap Termination Payment ba fJuly
12, 2010 distribution date.

On August 3, 2010, pursuant to a cash tender digrhad been launched on July 7, 2010 (the “20f€r'Q,
we acquired $24.7 million in aggregate stated amotiPass-Through Certificates. Following the 2@ffer and
the August privately-negotiated transaction, we haduired, and, on September 2, 2010, we canct#ieentire
$325 million in aggregate stated amount of the Héssugh Certificates. In connection with the cafation, the
corresponding $325 million of funding agreementsrewvsurrendered by the Stingray Investor Trust, afid
unamortized debt issuance costs relating to Styngnathe amount of $2.8 million, were written offfhese were
included in collateral finance facilities expengethe Consolidated Statements of Income.

We had elected the fair value option under FASB /26 in respect of the Pass-Through Certificatdd bg
non-affiliated investors prior to the cancellatiohthe Pass-Through Certificates. The fair valu®ecember 31,
2009 of the outstanding Pass-Through Certificatelsl by non-affiliated investors was $55.1 milliondawas
included in long-term debt, at fair value in ournSolidated Balance Sheets. Changes in fair vakre weflected
through earnings. There were no changes in fduevéor the three months ended September 30, 2618lla

20



SCOTTISH RE GROUP LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDIT ED)
September 30, 2010
7. Debt Obligations and Other Funding ArrangementgContinued)

purchases of the remaining Pass-Through Certiicgbeior to their cancellation on September 2, 2046re
acquired at fair value amounts already reflecteth@nconsolidated financial statements for thensonths ended
June 30, 2010.

Premium Asset Trust Series 2004-4

On March 12, 2004, SALIC entered into an unsecfwaeding agreement with the Premium Asset Trustafor
aggregate of $100 million (the “PATS”). The fundiagreement had a stated maturity of March 12, 2869
“PATS Maturity Date”), and accrued interest at teraf three-month LIBOR plus 0.922%, payable oruartgrly
basis. The amount due under this funding agreemastincluded under interest-sensitive contratillizes on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets.

During the first quarter of 2009, we extinguishpdmarily through negotiated repurchases, SALIGisecured
funding agreement payment obligation in respe¢hefPATS. The extinguishment of the PATS secwitiequired
through negotiated repurchases and the settlenfi¢iné cemaining funding obligation in respect dfaflthe PATS
securities not repurchased prior to the MaturityteDaere completed for a total consideration of $4illion,
compared to the $100 million par value of the PAT®nsequently, in accordance with FASB ASC Topif,86
Transfers and Servicing, we recorded a gain oregtimguishment of the PATS debt of $53.5 milliontire first
quarter of 2009.

Deferral of Interest Payments on Floating Rate Céai Securities and Trust Preferred Securities

We began deferring interest payments as of MarcR089 on our floating rate Capital and Trust Prefér
Securities issued and sold through certain statutosts established by us. These deferrals wemnitied by the
terms of the indentures governing the securities\aere made at the discretion of our Board to pueskquidity.
Deferral of such interest payments may continugterduration of the permitted 20 consecutive cubrtperiods.
As of September 30, 2010, we have accrued andrddfeayment of $10.2 million of interest. SHI andlLBC are
restricted in their ability to make dividend payrteim any period where interest payment obligationsthese
securities are not current.

For further discussion on the accrued and defepeanent on our floating rate Capital and Trust &red
Securities subsequent to September 30, 2010, seelp“Subsequent Events”.

8. Mezzanine Equity
Convertible Cumulative Participating Preferred Shes

On May 7, 2007, we completed the equity investmeanhsaction by MassMutual Capital Partners LLC
(“MassMutual Capital”), a member of the MassMutbBalancial Group, and SRGL Acquisition, LDC, an life of
Cerberus Capital Management, L.P. (“Cerberus”)panced by us on November 27, 2006 (the “2007 Nepit&la
Transaction”). Pursuant to the 2007 New Capitadnfaction, MassMutual Capital and Cerberus inveated
aggregate $600 million in us in exchange for 1,000, in the aggregate, newly-issued Convertible Qative
Participating Preferred Shares. The gross proceets $600 million less $44.1 million in closingst®, which
resulted in aggregate net proceeds of $555.9 milli&ach Convertible Cumulative Participating Pmefé Share
has a par value of $0.01 per share with an ingfated value and liquidation preference of $600 gherre, as
adjusted for the accretion of dividends or the paytof dividends or distributions as describedHertelow.

As of September 30, 2010, MassMutual Capital andb&es hold in the aggregate approximately 68.7%uof
equity voting power, along with the right to desatmtwo-thirds of the members of our Board.
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The Convertible Cumulative Participating Prefer@ftares are convertible at the option of the holdeany
time, into an aggregate of 150,000,000 ordinaryeshaf SRGL. On the ninth anniversary of issue,@onvertible
Cumulative Participating Preferred Shares autoraiyiovill convert into an aggregate of 150,000,08@inary
shares, if not previously converted. We are nofuired at any time to redeem the Convertible Cutivda
Participating Preferred Shares for cash, excehienevent of a liquidation or upon the occurrenta change-in-
control event.

We have accounted for the Convertible Cumulativeiépating Preferred Shares in accordance with BAS
ASC Subtopic 470-20, Debt — Debt with Conversiod &ther Options (“FASB 470-20"), which incorporatel§ F
D-98: “Classification and Measurement of Redeema®deurities”. Dividends on the Convertible Cumulati
Participating Preferred Shares are cumulative aedete daily on a non-compounding basis at a ra®25% per
annum on the stated value of $600 million, whetirenot there are profits, surplus, or other fundgsilable for the
payment of dividends. Such dividends will be meastdely by increasing the liquidation preference toé
Convertible Cumulative Participating Preferred $sar As of September 30, 2010, the amount of didde
accreted pursuant to the terms of the Convertiblm@ative Participating Preferred Shares is $14dllion in the
aggregate, or $148 per share.

Redemption of the Convertible Cumulative PartidimatPreferred Shares is contingent upon a change in
control. Since neither liquidation nor a changeontrol is currently probable, the accreted diviie have not been
accrued in our consolidated financial statements.

In the event that dividends or distributions arede#o ordinary shareholders, the holders of thevEdible
Cumulative Participating Preferred Shares will reeea dividend or distribution equal to the divideror
distribution that such holders would have beentledtito receive had the right been exercised toedrall of the
Cumulative Participating Preference Shares to arglishares.

To the extent that the Convertible Cumulative Raréiting Preferred Shares so participate on aroaserted
basis in dividends paid on ordinary shares, a spmeding reduction will be made to the liquidatfmeference for
the Convertible Cumulative Participating Preferi®dares. The Convertible Cumulative Participatimgféred
Shares have a liquidation preference equal to thitial stated value, as adjusted for (x) the ation of dividends
and (y) any cash payment or payment in propertdieidends or distributions. The holders of Conimet
Cumulative Participating Preferred Shares may, a@mother things, require us to redeem the Convertibl
Cumulative Participating Preferred Shares uponaagé-in-control event.

Upon a change-in-control event, the redemptionepat the Convertible Cumulative Participating Prefd
Shares is an amount equal to the greater of (i)stladed value of the outstanding Convertible Cutiuda
Participating Preferred Shares, plus an amountléquhe sum of all accreted dividends through ehdier of (A)
the date of payment of the consideration payabtewgpchange-in-control event, or (B) the fifth aremsary of the
issue date of the Convertible Cumulative PartigigaPreferred Shares, or (ii) the amount that tbkeldr of the
Convertible Cumulative Participating Preferred ®sawould have been entitled to receive with respecuch
change-in-control event if it had exercised itshtigp convert all or such portion of its ConveribCumulative
Participating Preferred Shares for ordinary shamesediately prior to the date of such change-intadrevent.

The liquidation preference of the Convertible Cuative Participating Preferred Shares (including any
adjustments thereto) is not applicable once theveuible Cumulative Participating Preferred Shanase been
converted into ordinary shares, as described above.

The Convertible Cumulative Participating Prefer®dares rank, with respect to payment of dividenas$ a
distribution of assets upon voluntary or involugthquidation, dissolution, or winding-up (a “Licg&tion Event”):
(a) senior to our ordinary shares and to each aflass or series of our shares established by tlaedB the terms of
which do not expressly provide that such class aries ranks senior to or pari passu with the Cdibler
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Cumulative Participating Preferred Shares as torgey of dividends and distribution of assets updigaidation
Event; (b) pari passu with each class or seriemioShares, the terms of which expressly provid¢ $hich class or
series ranks pari passu with the Convertible CutiveldParticipating Preferred Shares as to paymédividends
and distribution of assets upon a Liquidation Eyvemtd (c) junior to each other class or series wf securities
outstanding as of the date of the completion of20@7 New Capital Transaction that ranks seniasuoordinary
shares, and to each class or series of our shheeerms of which expressly provide that suchsctasseries ranks
senior to the Convertible Cumulative ParticipatiPigferred Shares as to payment of dividends ardbdison of
assets upon a Liquidation Event and all classemppreferred shares outstanding as of the coropletf the 2007
New Capital Transaction.

The Convertible Cumulative Participating Prefer@&ares conversion price ($4.00 per ordinary shaes)
lower than the trading value of $4.66 of our ordjnshares on the date of issue. This discount bas hccounted
for as an embedded beneficial conversion featuaedordance with FASB ASC 470-20, which incorpasdiéT F
98-5, “Accounting for Convertible Securities witheBeficial Conversion Features or Contingently Atibke
Conversion Ratios”, and EITF 00-27, “Application ¢dsue No. 98-5 to Certain Convertible Instruments”
Accordingly, the Company recognized a $120.8 mill@nbedded beneficial conversion feature, whiclhiced the
Convertible Cumulative Participating Preferred h@sue amount shown in Mezzanine Equity and isecdhe
amount of additional paid-in capital. Under the aotting guidance above, we had the choice to aed¢het full
intrinsic value of the embedded beneficial convardeature out of retained earnings over the naga yerm of the
shares or immediately, due to the ability of th&dbos to convert at their option at any time. Gitlea ability of the
holders to convert at any time, we elected to aedtee full intrinsic value of the embedded berieficonversion
feature on the date of issue. As we did not hauweratained earnings on the date of issue, the 812dlion
beneficial conversion feature was accreted outlditenal paid-in capital into Mezzanine Equity.

Pursuant to our Securities Purchase Agreementy dddgember 26, 2006 (the “Agreement”), with Massivait
Capital and Cerberus, certain representations amlanties were provided relating to our statutocgoanting
records. As discussed in Note 15, “Commitments @pdtingencies”, certain statutory accounting erraere
discovered in 2006 which have resulted in an ind&oation claim against us by MassMutual and Ceuker
Resolution of this claim could result in a changé¢hie conversion formula on these securities.

9. Non-cumulative Perpetual Preferred Shares
Perpetual Preferred Shares
We are authorized to issue 50,000,000 perpetuédmeel shares of par value $0.01 each.

On June 28, 2005, we priced our offering of 5,000,ton-cumulative Perpetual Preferred Shares (the
“Perpetual Preferred Shares”) and entered intorahpise agreement relating to the shares pursuamhith the
underwriters of the offering agreed to purchasestieres. Gross proceeds were $125 million andetlatpenses
were $4.6 million. Settlement of the net proceettuaed on July 6, 2005.

Dividends on the Perpetual Preferred Shares arabp@yn a non-cumulative basis at a rate per anofum
7.25% until the dividend payment date in July 20Thereafter, the dividend rate may be at a fixad determined
through remarketing of the Perpetual Preferred &htr specific periods of varying length not I#ssn six months
or may be at a floating rate reset quarterly basedh predefined set of interest rate benchmarksrind any
dividend period, unless the full dividends for therrent dividend period on all outstanding PerpeRizferred
Shares have been declared or paid, no dividendbmaayaid or declared on our ordinary shares andrdmary
shares or other junior shares may be purchasedemsetl or otherwise acquired for consideration. |dbaton of
dividends on the Perpetual Preferred Shares islptet if we fail to meet specified capital adeqyacet income,
or shareholders’ equity levels. In accordance Wiith Certificate of Designations, dividends on Berpetual
Preferred Shares generally may be funded onlyaeitient they are payable out of our distributgibtdits, and/or
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the proceeds of a new issue of shares, and/orfalieoShare Premium Account (as defined in the iftsate of
Designations) related to the Perpetual Preferreaesh

The Perpetual Preferred Shares do not have a tyatlate, and we are not required to redeem theesharhe
Perpetual Preferred Shares were not redeemablegnirt® their terms prior to July 2010. Subseqteduly 2010,
the Perpetual Preferred Shares are redeemabler atptian, in whole or in part, at a redemption priequal to
$25.00 per share, plus any declared and unpaidietidis at the redemption date, without accumulatibany
undeclared dividends. The Perpetual PreferredeShame unsecured and subordinated to all indelgsdhat does
not by its terms rank pari passu or junior to tleepRtual Preferred Shares. The holders of theeReapPreferred
Shares have no voting rights except with respeatetdain fundamental changes in the terms of thepd@eal
Preferred Shares and, in certain circumstanceabeicase of certain dividend non-payments.

Ratings of the Perpetual Preferred Shares weralwitin by Standard & Poor’s, Moody'’s, Fitch Ratirsgsl
A.M. Best Company in 2009 following our notificatido each of the rating agencies that we wouldomyér be
compensating the agencies for their maintenancguch ratings. See Note 12, “Regulatory and Ratiggncy
Matters”.

On June 23, 2010, pursuant to a cash tender aiterched on May 7, 2010, we acquired $4.8 million
aggregate liquidation preference of Perpetual PedeShares, which shares were immediately reded&yn&RGL.
As a result, a gain on redemption of PerpetualdPrefl Shares of $3.9 million was recorded for tiree months
ended June 30, 2010, as a component of net incdtmbutable to ordinary shareholders for the pugpad
calculating earnings per share.

Dividends on Perpetual Preferred Shares

On April 14, 2008, we announced that, given ourenir financial condition, our Board in its discoetihad
decided not to declare a dividend on our Perpdtualerred Shares for the April 15, 2008 dividenginpant date.
In addition, we announced that pursuant to theiftate of Designations for our Perpetual PreferBthres our
Board may be precluded from declaring and payirgdinds on the October 15, 2008 dividend paymeta itiethe
event we did not meet certain financial tests uniderterms of the Perpetual Preferred Shares edjfir us to pay
such dividends, which tests subsequently were mtfon such dividend payment date. On July 3, 2008 Board
determined that in light of our financial conditiand in accordance with the terms of the forbeaagreements
with the relevant counterparties to certain of tha@n outstanding collateral finance facilities, weuld suspend the
cash dividend for the July 15, 2008 payment ddteaddition, as previously indicated our Board wascluded
from declaring and paying dividends on the Octdlier2008 dividend payment date as we did not nieetelevant
financial tests under the terms of the PerpetuafdPred Shares. In accordance with the relevamatntial tests
under the terms of the Perpetual Preferred ShauvesBoard was precluded from declaring and payirngldnds on
the January 15, 2009, April 15, 2009, July 15, 20D8tober 15, 2009, January 15, 2010, April 15,@Gihd July
15, 2010 dividend payment dates and, as a resdlhat declare and pay a dividend on such datempllyment of
dividends on July 15, 2009 marked the sixth divitlperiod for which dividends had not been declaed paid.
Pursuant to the terms of, and subject to the puresdset forth in, the Certificate of Designatioakted to the
Perpetual Preferred Shares, the holders of theeRepPreferred Shares are entitled to elect twecthrs to our
Board in the event dividends on the Perpetual PedeShares have not been declared and paid foorsimore
dividend periods. For further discussion on the-declaration of Perpetual Preferred Shares dididesee Note
16, “Subsequent Events”.
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Income tax benefit for the three months ended $epte 30, 2010 was $3.0 million. The net incomewf
Bermuda and Cayman entities are not subject toniectax. The net income of our U.S. and Irish esgtitilid not
generate a current tax expense, other than intangspenalties on accrued tax liabilities, dueht availability of
tax losses from prior tax years. The utilizationtax losses results in a reduction in deferred aagets and a
corresponding reduction in the valuation allowaestablished against those deferred tax assets.intbhme tax
benefit for the three months ended September 300,26 principally due to a reduction in the valaatallowance
resulting from a change in deferred tax assetsugported by deferred tax liabilities.

Income tax benefit for the nine months ended SelpeerB0, 2010 was $39.4 million. The income taxdfién
for the nine months ended September 30, 2010, imzipally due to a release of $35.9 million of acml tax
liabilities. The release was as a result of tlkwmsideration of our position with respect to anartain tax position
following a U.S. tax court ruling related to an ffiliated third party (Container Corporation v. Camssioner, 134
T.C. 5 (2010)).

At September 30, 2010, we had total unrecognizedbemefits (excluding interest and penalties) of%h4
million, the recognition of which would result in%8.7 million benefit at the effective tax rate the applicable
period. At December 31, 2009, we had total unreizegl tax benefits (excluding interest and pergita $132.2
million, the recognition of which would result ing20.6 million benefit at the effective tax rate the applicable
period.

Our deferred tax assets are principally supportethé reversal of deferred tax liabilities. We dawmaintained
a full valuation allowance against any remaining deferred tax assets, given our inability to refyfuture taxable
income tax projections.

At September 30, 2010, our deferred tax liabilifredude $43.6 million of deferred tax liabiliti¢sat reverse
after the expiration of net operating losses inliapple jurisdictions, and, therefore, cannot suppeferred tax
assets. At December 31, 2009, the correspondimyianof deferred tax liabilities was $49.8 million.

We file our tax returns as prescribed by the tavslaf the jurisdictions in which we operate. AsS&ptember
30, 2010, we remained subject to examination infélewing major tax jurisdictions for the returfited for the
years indicated below:

Major Tax Jurisdictions Open Years
u.s.
Life GroUP «ovveeeee e e 2006 through 2009
NON-Life GroUp ....ccooceeiiiiiiiiieeieeeee et 2006 through 2009
[relaNnd .......ceveiiiiiieiii 2005 through 2009
11. Earnings per Ordinary Share

Basic earnings per share is computed based ondlyhi®d average number of ordinary shares outsigratid
assumes an allocation of net income to Convertihimulative Participating Preferred Shares for tagqal (or the
portion of the period) that this security is outstang. Losses are not allocated to Convertible Gative
Participating Preferred Shares. Under the prorssiof FASB ASC Topic 260, Earnings per Share (“FASBC
2607), formerly SFAS No. 128, basic earnings pearshare computed by dividing the net income attable to
ordinary shareholders by the weighted average numbsghares of our ordinary shares outstandingHerperiod.
Diluted earnings per share is calculated basedemeighted average number of ordinary sharesamdstg plus
the diluted effect of potential ordinary shares@tordance with the if-converted method. In acaoce with FASB
ASC 260, the exercise of options and warrants avexsion of convertible securities is not assumadss it would
reduce earnings per share or increase loss pex.shar
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The following table sets forth the computation asic and diluted earnings per ordinary share utigetwo-
class method and the if-converted method, respagtias required under FASB ASC 260, which incoapes EITF
No. 03-06, “Participating Securities and the Twas3l Method under FASB Statement No. 128".

Three months ended Nine months ended

September 30, September 30, September 30, September 30,
(U.S. dollars in thousands, except share 2010 2009 2010 2009 (Restated)
data)

Basic income attributable to ordinary
shareholders

Numerator:
Net income attributable to ordinary

shareholders...........ccoeeveeeevieieeeeeee $ 82,406 $ 201,890% 259,937 $ 2,040,346
Amounts allocable to convertible

cumulative participating preferred

SNAIES .o (1,188) (2,910) (3,747) (29,407)
Numerator for basic income per ordinary
SNATE ..o $ 81,218 $ 198,980 $ 256,190 $ 2,010,939

Denominator:
Denominator for basic income per

ordinary share - weighted average

number of

ordinary Shares............ccceeveeeeverernne. 68,383,370 68,383,370 68,383,370 68,383,370
Basic income per share from continuing

operations attributable to ordinary
shareholders $ 119 $ 291 % 3.74 % 29.41

Diluted income attributable to ordinary
shareholders

Numerator:

Net income attributable to ordinary
shareholders $ 82,406 $ 201,890 $ 259,937 $ 2,040,346

Denominator:
Denominator for basic income per
ordinary share - weighted average

number of

ordinary shares...........cccceoveveevcvvnnnnnne. 68,383,370 68,383,370 68,383,370 68,383,370
Effect of dilutive securities*.................... 150,000,000 150,000,000 150,000,000 150,000,000
Denominator for dilutive income per

ordinary share ............... 218,383,370 218,383,370 218,383,370 218,383,370

Diluted income per share from continuing

operations attributable to ordinary
shareholders $ 038 $ 092 % 120 $ 9.34
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* In accordance with FASB ASC 260, exercise of opsi and warrants or conversion of convertible sgesiis not
assumed if the result would be anti-dilutive, sashwhen a loss from continuing operations is reglror the
exercise price of the options exceeds the marke¢ @f common stock. Due to the dilutive effectaarnings per
share (“EPS"), our stock options (which are corilséatinto 3,930,362 ordinary shares) potentiallyldodilute EPS
in the future.

12. Regulatory and Rating Agency Matters
Order of Supervision

In connection with its receipt of the Permitted ®i@ described above in Note 1, SRUS consentettheto
issuance by the Department on January 5, 2009 @rdar of Supervision, in accordance with 18 Del §68942.
The Order of Supervision subsequently was exteratetl amended on April 3, 2009 with the issuancehef t
Amended Order. Pursuant to the Amended Order, SBéiferally must receive prior written consent frdme t
Department in order to engage in any transactidgsidel of the ordinary course of business; makeepgayments,
or incur certain debts, obligations or liabiliti@s any transaction of $1 million or greater (proxidthat this
limitation does not apply to the payment of claimemiums, and other third party reinsurance sa#igs, in each
case of less than $10 million per payment); engagew business; lend any of its funds; invest ahigs funds in a
manner that deviates from the plan filed with thepBrtment; commute, novate, amend or otherwisegehany
existing reinsurance contract or treaty; or engagay transaction with any related party.

Rating Agencies

Our financial strength ratings and the financiaksgth ratings of our subsidiaries have been lodvene
several occasions since 2007. Ratings at suclslelso previously triggered the vesting of cortinatrecapture
rights for certain of our reinsurance businessrasdlted in the increase to a maximum “steppedraf® of certain
guarantor fees related to the securitization stirest used to finance the Valuation of Life InsusmPRolicies Model
Regulation (“Regulation XXX") statutory reserve udgements associated with business ceded by SR@&do of
Orkney Re and Orkney Re II. In light of the foregn combined with our run-off strategy for our r&ming
business, among other factors, we determined thatanhonger intended to utilize capital for the ipayt of ratings
fees to maintain the financial strength and otlaings for us and our operating subsidiaries. Adiogly, we
notified each of the rating agencies in June 20@8 tve no longer would compensate the agencieghfer
maintenance of such ratings.

Following this communication, on June 4, 2009, 8tad & Poor’s Corporation (“S&P”), affirmed and the
subsequently withdrew the “CC” counterparty credting of SRGL, the “C” rating of SRGL's Perpetirreferred
Shares, and the “CCC-" counterparty credit andrfima strength ratings of SALIC. At the same ting&P
affrmed and then withdrew the “R” counterparty diteand financial strength ratings of SRUS, the ©C
counterparty credit and financial strength ratinfisScottish Re Life Corporation, and the “CCC-" imgrsecured
rating of the Pass-Through Certificates.

On June 12, 2009, A.M. Best Company Inc. (“A.M. Beaffirmed and then withdrew the financial stréimg
ratings and issuer credit ratings of SALIC, Schttize Life Corporation, and Orkney Re. At the sdime, A.M.
Best affirmed and then withdrew our issuer crediing and the rating of our Perpetual Preferredé&has well as
our indicative ratings of senior unsecured debbostinated debt, and preferred stock. SRUS’ fir@ratrength
rating of “E” (Under Regulatory Supervision) andusr credit rating of “rs” was unchanged.

On June 22, 2009, Fitch Ratings (“Fitch”) downgidee issuer default rating of SRGL to “CC” fromCC”

and then withdrew its rating of SRGL. At the satime, Fitch affirmed and then withdrew the insufieancial
strength rating of SRUS. Fitch also has withdrala insurer financial strength rating of SALIC athé rating of
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the Pass-Through Certificates and the Perpetudéifed Shares. As such, Fitch has withdrawn abwf ratings
and no longer will provide analytical coverage sfamd our affiliates.

On August 18, 2009, Moody’s downgraded the inswuedimancial strength ratings of SALIC to “Ca” froig”
and of SRUS to “Ba3” from “Bal”, before withdrawigpth ratings. At the same time, Moody's downgchtte
“Ca” from “C” and then withdrew the senior securating of the Pass-Through Certificates and oufepred stock
rating.

13. Sale of a Block of Life Reinsurance North Améca Business

We engaged in 2008 in a process to sell our ebtieeReinsurance North America Segment. In Oct&08,
the process led to exclusive negotiations withaspective buyer; however, a satisfactory transadto the sale of
the entire Life Reinsurance North America Segmentla not be reached, primarily as a result of tistohic
disruption in the financial markets. Thereafter,an effort to find ways to address our capitajuillity and
collateral needs and the concerns of regulatorgpwsued the sale of a specific block of individiifal reinsurance
in our North American business. These efforts dudited in the announcement on February 20, 2009ubaad
closed the transactions contemplated by the M#stset Purchase Agreement (the “Purchase Agreeméayt’and
among the Company, SHI, SRUS, Scottish Re LifeifRela) Limited (“SRLB") and Scottish Re (Dublin) Lited
(“SRD") (collectively, the “Sellers”) with HannoveRe to sell a block of individual life reinsuranbesiness
acquired in 2004 from the ING Companies, which kloonsisted primarily of term life reinsurance wnisal life
with secondary guarantees, and yearly renewabfe bersiness (the “Acquired Business”), and whichcklavas
part of our Traditional Solutions business.

Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, Hannover Rehgmed the Acquired Business, which was acquired in
2004 by us from the ING Companies. The AcquirediBss consists primarily of term life reinsurangeiversal
life with secondary guarantees, and yearly renesvédsim business. When we originally purchasedAiteuired
Business in 2004, the ING Companies reinsured thdividual life reinsurance business to us on @%0ndemnity
reinsurance basis. A large portion of such busiiredaded guaranteed level premium term life inagmthat was
subject to the Regulation XXX reserve requiremamd universal life policies with secondary guarastsubject to
the “Regulation AXXX" reserve requirements. Undmir 2004 agreement with the ING Companies, the ING
Companies were obligated to maintain collateraltfer Regulation XXX and AXXX reserve requiremenfstee
Acquired Business for the duration of such requéaets, and financial incentives were provided tooeinage us to
replace this financing with alternative third pafigancing. The Acquired Business generally does include
business previously ceded by SRUS to Ballantyne @&ethe reinsurance transaction with this speadi@pgse
reinsurance vehicle was novated and assigned frRtdSSto SLD effective October 1, 2008. However, the
Acquired Business does include the business reeaptfrom Ballantyne Re in connection with a serigds
recaptures during 2008 in which SRUS recapturethbas from Ballantyne Re, which business then weaptured
by SLD, which in turn ceded the recaptured busiriesSLDI, who ceded it to SRLB (the foregoing retaps,
collectively, the “Ballantyne Recaptures”), and thesiness recaptured in connection with the unwir2D08 of our
former HSBC Il collateral finance facility (togetheith the Ballantyne Recaptures, the “ING Finagsi). In
connection with each of the ING Financings, SLDeaxkthe applicable recaptured business to SLDI, vbeded
the recaptured business to SRLB. SLDI agreed twigeo or cause the provision of, one or more Isttdrcredit in
order to provide SLD with statutory financial statnt credit for the excess reserves associated thhithNG
Financings. As partial consideration for eachhaf ING Financings, the Company agreed to bear dbts ©f the
letters of credit by paying SLD a facility fee bdsen the face amount of such letters of credittanting. Upon
closing the transactions contemplated by the Pgecldgreement, Hannover Re assumed the businessdrédathe
ING Financings as part of the Acquired Businesswali as the obligation to pay the existing and dmtyre
increases in the fees for the related letterseditr

In connection with the Purchase Agreement, the I@@nmpanies and certain of the Sellers entered into
recapture agreements (and, in specific instancesations to Hannover Re of certain existing reinsge
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agreements) with respect to the Acquired Busirmsd,the ING Companies and Hannover Re subsequemttyed
into new reinsurance agreements with respect té\tgeired Business immediately thereafter. Thesapture and
reinsurance transactions and the novations hadffactiee date of January 1, 2009. SRUS and SRLBaia

responsible for liabilities and obligations to Skhd SLDI under their reinsurance agreements witbdlparties to
the extent attributable to periods prior to Janugrg009.

The Purchase Agreement also related to the purcrabseale of certain assets used by the Sell@mninection
with their administration of the Acquired Busindtise “Transferred Assets”) and the transfer ofaiaremployees
from the Sellers to Hannover Re in connection théle Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, theinéngalease
on SRUS’ Denver office location was assigned tortaer Re as was a portion of SRUS’ Charlotte offiamtion.
In addition, Hannover Re entered into an admirtisteaservices agreement with SRUS pursuant to wHighnover
Re administers the accepted and ceded mortalityndss retained by SRUS and its affiliates. Sirylddannover
Re entered into an administrative services agreeméh the ING Companies pursuant to which HannoRer
administers the Acquired Business and providesitedther administrative services to the ING Conipan

In accordance with the Purchase Agreement, paynveerts made as follows: (i) the Sellers made recaptu
payments to the ING Companies in an aggregate ameguml to $1,325 million (adjusted for interim joer
earnings from January 1, 2009 to the date of aipsifii) the ING Companies made correspondingahiiremium
payments to Hannover Re, and (iii) Hannover Re naapgayment to the Sellers in respect of the TraresleAssets
in an amount equal to $18 million.

Following the transfer of assets with respect ® ithcapture payments noted above, we were reledsait
associated policyholder liabilities on the salghed Acquired Business as of the effective dateaoiudry 1, 2009.
The release of such liabilities resulted in a pre-gain of $703.6 million, after transaction expenand related
costs. This gain was also subject to certain cgatigies, which were all satisfied as of Decembe2B809. Of the
$703.6 million gain, $642.4 million, $59.8 millioi$1.0 million, and $0.4 million were recognized thre first,
second, third and fourth quarters of 2009, respelsti This total gain is summarized as follows:

Consolidated
Statement of

(U.S. dollars in millions) Balance Sheet Income
Transfer of investments ..............oo e cceeeeeee e, $ (1,468.7)
Release of reserve for future policy benefits......... 1,902.9
Decrease in accounts payable and other liabilities 1.7
Decrease in reinsurance balances and risk fees

receivable ... (6.3)
Decrease in reinsurance balances payable .......... 4.7
Increase in Other asSets ..................omeeveeveereanes 18.7
Decrease in claims and other policy benefits....... $ 453.0 $ 453.0
Decrease in accounts payable and other liabilities 275.5
Change in value of embedded derivatives............. $ 275.5 275.5
Release in deferred acquisition COSLS ......uumn . nee. (24.9)
Acquisition costs and other insurance expenses,

0T SR $ (24.9) (24.9)
Total pre-tax gain for the year-ended December

31, 2009 ......coererereieereeeeeee e $ 703.6
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In connection with the Purchase Agreement, the GotypHannover Re, and the ING Companies agreedego u
commercially-reasonable efforts to transfer to Hawam Re certain retrocession agreements under wichnd/or
the ING Companies ceded to third parties certaksrielated to the Acquired Business. If a ceamount of such
third party retrocessionaires did not consent tchswmansfers prior to April 30, 2009, we were regdiunder the
Purchase Agreement to deposit into escrow with ide@nRe by May 14, 2009, a pro-rata amount rel&teslich
retrocession agreements for which consent had men lobtained as of that date. Pursuant to the Bsech
Agreement, in the event none of the retrocessieaaionsented to transfer their agreements, thenmiaxipotential
escrow funding amount was $136.3 million. In theergvone or more retrocessionaire consents had een b
obtained by December 31, 2009, the related escomdsf would be released to Hannover Re. As of stoeogy
funding requirement date of May 14, 2009, the baganas $1.9 million. The required escrow balantessquently
was reduced to $0 and all of the funds were retehaek to us by the end of 2009.

This transaction resulted in a $49.8 milliacome tax expense in the first quarter of 2@Qf; to an increase
in our valuation allowance. The increased valumtitowance was because the remaining deferrelibtailities did
not support the full recoverability of our deferrieck assets, as discussed earlier in Note 2, “BAdresentation-
Restatement of Prior Financial Statements”.

14. Collateral Finance Facilities
Ballantyne Re

Ballantyne Re is a special purpose reinsuranceckehicorporated under the laws of Ireland. In MN2906,
Ballantyne Re issued, in a private offering, $1biMon of debt to third party investors, $178 rioh of Class C
Notes and $181.2 million in preference shares thlISAand $500,000 in Class D Notes to SRGL.

Initially, in accordance with FASB ASC 810-10, Baityne Re was considered to be a variable interggy,
and we were considered to hold the primary bersdficiterest, following a quantitative analysis wétgy it was
determined that we would absorb a majority of theeeted losses. As a result, Ballantyne Re wasotidiased in
our financial statements through December 31, 2008.

Effective January 1, 2009, Ballantyne Re no lorigezonsolidated within the financial statementsS&GL.
Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement (as definednhdoe the disposal of the Acquired Business, Harer Re
explicitly agreed to assume the mortality risk &irrecaptures of business from Ballantyne Re. dsposal of the
variable interest to absorb the mortality risk posed from Ballantyne Re under the reinsuranceeexgent
constituted a reconsideration event related to dbmesolidation of Ballantyne Re under FASB ASC 810-1
Consolidation - Overall (“FASB ASC 810-10"). We sdguently completed a primary beneficiary analgsid
concluded that we were no longer the primary beraff of Ballantyne Re as defined within FASB AST08L0,
and, as a result, we no longer consolidate Baltenfe into the consolidated financial statemenSREL. The de-
consolidation of Ballantyne Re reduced our consiéid total assets and liabilities by approxima&3g5 million
and $2,035 million, respectively, resulting in aeiime non-cash de-consolidation gain of $1,150ani] which we
recognized in the first quarter of 2009. This daéa no impact on our liquidity position.

As of June 30, 2010, we had no remaining direct lsgosure related to Ballantyne Re since ourastsrin
the Ballantyne Re Class D Notes and Preferred Staeevalued at $0 and are classified as tradicgrisies on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets. The Class C Notes sostractually written-off during the fourth quarbf 2008.

SRUS remains liable for breaches of its represemist warranties, covenants, and other obligattbasrelate
to periods before the assignment and novation @ &lthe reinsurance agreement with Ballantyne Readdition,
the Company and SRUS remain responsible for ceoagming covenants and indemnities made for thefitenf
Ballantyne Re and the financial guarantors of ¢eidéthe notes issued by Ballantyne Re.
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Orkney |

On February 11, 2005, Orkney | issued and sol@ private offering, an aggregate of $850 millioni&e A
Floating Rate Insured Notes due February 11, 2685 “Orkney Notes”). Orkney | was organized for thmited
purpose of issuing the Orkney Notes and holdingstbek of Orkney Re, Inc., originally a South Caralspecial
purpose financial captive insurance company, n@elaware special purpose captive insurance comg@rkney
Re"). SRUS holds all of the limited liability compginterest in Orkney |, and has contributed capitaDrkney | in
the amount of $268.5 million. Proceeds from thisedfig were used to fund the Regulation XXX reserve
requirements for a defined block of level premiwamnt life insurance policies issued by direct cedingpanies
between January 1, 2000 and December 31, 2003 earslired by SRUS to Orkney Re. Proceeds from thee&y
Notes have been deposited into a series of accthattsollateralize the notes and the reserve atitigs of SRUS.

The holders of the Orkney Notes have no recouraénagus or any of our subsidiaries, other thann@ykl.
The timely payment of interest and ultimate paymanprincipal for the Orkney Notes are guarantegdviBIA
Insurance Corporation (“MBIA”). We are not requr® provide any additional financial support td@ey I.

Interest on the principal amount of the Orkney Ndtepayable quarterly at a rate equivalent toetfmenth
LIBOR plus 0.53%. At June 30, 2010, the interege was 0.96% (compared to 0.80% at December 319)20
Any payment of principal, including by redemptiam,interest on the Orkney Notes is sourced frondéivds from
Orkney Re, and the balances available in a sefi¢gust accounts generally excluding amounts onodigpgn a
reinsurance trust account supporting the associa®setve requirements of SRUS. Dividends may bdentaly
after filing with the Commissioner in accordancehathe terms of Orkney Re’s licensing order anddoordance
with applicable law. The Orkney Notes also contaigtustomary limitation on lien provisions and omsary events
of default provisions, which, if breached, couldut in the accelerated maturity of the Orkney Not®rkney | has
the option to redeem all or a portion of the Orkimtes prior to, on, or after February 11, 201®jesct to certain
call premiums.

In accordance with FASB ASC 810-10, Orkney | is sidared to be a variable interest entity, and we ar
considered to hold the primary beneficial intef@st we cede all the business assumed by Orknégllgwing an
analysis whereby it was determined that we woukbdba majority of the expected losses. As a reGukney | is
consolidated in our financial statements. ThetasseOrkney | consist of fixed-maturity investmgmind cash and
cash equivalents. Our Consolidated Statementsawinhe shows the investment returns of Orkney hasstment
income, and the cost of the facility is reflectedcbllateral finance facilities expense. Fundshi@ securitization
structure are used for the sole purpose of therisigation structure and, hence, are not availdblegeneral
corporate purposes.

To the extent we experience fair value declinesuininvestment portfolio, we may need to recapaupzo-rata
portion of the underlying business in Orkney | §ind alternative collateral support for the recaptlibusiness. No
assurances can be given that we would be succéssfeturing such alternative collateral support.

Related Party Acquisition of Orkney Notes
We were informed by Cerberus that an aféliaf Cerberus had acquired, from one or more ilisaéd third
parties, $700 million in aggregate principal amoohthe Orkney Notes in 2009. None of the Compa@nkney |,

Orkney Re, or any of our other subsidiaries wasirdypto this purchase. No terms of the Orkney Nateany of
the underlying transaction documents were changedrasult of this purchase.
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Orkney Re/Orkney | Notices of Default

On February 9, 2009, MBIA served Orkney Rekr@y |, and SRUS with notices of default underheatthe
Orkney | indenture and the insurance and indemagyeement (the “Orkney Insurance Agreement”), aligg
failure by the parties to provide certain requifiedncial statements and improper withdrawals ey larties from
Orkney | tax accounts. SRUS cured such allegeduttsfwithin the cure periods set forth in the imee and the
Orkney Insurance Agreement.

On September 21, 2009, MBIA served Orkney Bkney I, and SRUS with a notice of default untres
restructuring agreement executed at the time oh&rkRe’s redomestication from South Carolina toabalre,
alleging failure by the parties to provide MBIA Wwiin actuarial review in accordance with the rexjugnts set
forth in the restructuring agreement. SRUS, Orkhend Orkney Re disagree with such contentiomweéler, in
the event such alleged failure to provide an a@bagview ultimately is determined to be a defaahd because it
was not cured within five (5) business days of September 21, 2009 notice, then such default wonihdtitute an
event of default under the Orkney Insurance Agregnwhich, in turn, would provide certain enhancedtractual
rights to MBIA under the Orkney Insurance Agreemémtiuding the right to recover from Orkney | aagtual
losses, costs, and expenses incurred by MBIA imeoction with the event of default and the receifptertain
penalty fees. Pursuant to the terms of a lettezeagent put in place between SRUS and MBIA atithe bf the
Orkney | transaction, SRUS would also be obligateday, on behalf of Orkney I, certain of the fareg fees and
expenses to the extent due from Orkney I. As pft&aber 30, 2010, MBIA, Orkney Re, Orkney |, andJSRare
engaged in discussions and negotiations relatétetactuarial review, withdrawals from the Orknegt accounts,
and alleged defaults described above.

On February 22, 2010, MBIA served Orkney Bekney |, and SRUS with notices of default unelach of the
Orkney | indenture and the Orkney Insurance Agre¥nadleging failure by the parties to provide eértrequired
financial statements and other documents requioetdet delivered under these transaction docume®RUS
subsequently caused such documents to be delivatieth the applicable cure periods, and, as ofdhate hereof,
there is no event of default resulting from suctices of default.

Orkney Re I

On December 21, 2005, Orkney Re II, whose issudmhary shares are held by a share trustee anditinees
in trust for charitable purposes, issued, in agigwoffering, $450 million of debt to external isters. The debt
consisted of $382.5 million of Series A-1 FloatiRgte Guaranteed Notes (the “Series A-1 Notes”),3dfllion of
Series A-2 Floating Rate Notes (the “Series A-2dst)t and $25 million of Series B Floating Rate &bo{the
“Series B Notes”), all due December 31, 2035 (ablely, the “Orkney Re 1l Notes”). The Orkney ReNotes are
listed on the Irish Stock Exchange. Proceeds frois offering were used to fund the Regulation XX@serve
requirements for a defined block of level premiwemt life insurance policies issued between Jantia®004 and
December 31, 2004 reinsured by SRUS to Orkney ReRtoceeds from the Orkney Re Il Notes have been
deposited into a series of accounts that collasersihe notes and the reserve obligations of SRUS.

The holders of the Orkney Re Il Notes have no resmagainst us or any of our subsidiaries. AssGnearanty
(UK) Ltd. (“Assured”) has guaranteed the timely pent of the scheduled interest payments and timeipél on
the maturity date of the Series A-1 Notes. Wenraterequired to provide any additional financiabgart to Orkney
Re Il.

The debt issued to SALIC consisted of $30 millidnSeries C Floating Rate Notes (“Series C Notesig d
December 21, 2036, and $5 million of Series B Nofésse Series C Notes accrue interest only UngilOrkney Re
Il Notes are fully repaid. SRGL owns $0.5 millioreri®s D Convertible Notes due December 21, 2036, an
76,190,000 Preference Shares of $1.00 each iratapit
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Interest on the principal amount of the Orkney Rb&ldtes is payable quarterly at a rate equivalenthtee-
month LIBOR plus 0.425% for the Series A-1 Notéseé-month LIBOR plus 0.73% for the Series A-2 dptnd
three-month LIBOR plus 3.0% for the Series B Notéd.September 30, 2010, the interest rate on #reS§ A-1
Notes was 0.83% (compared to 0.70% at Decembe2(®1), Series A-2 Notes was 1.13% (compared to%.a0
December 31, 2009), and Series B Notes was 3.48%6p@red to 3.27% at December 31, 2009). The OrReel
Notes also contain customary limitations on lienvysions and customary events of default provisiovsich, if
breached, could result in the accelerated matofithe Orkney Re Il Notes. Orkney Re Il has the@pto redeem
all or a portion of the Orkney Re Il Notes, subjectertain call premiums and available (unencumthefunds.

In accordance with FASB ASC 810-10, Orkney Re Itamsidered to be a variable interest entity, andave
considered to hold the primary beneficial intef@st we cede all the business assumed by Orknej),Rellowing
an analysis whereby it was determined that we wablbrb a majority of the expected losses. As altré3rkney
Re 1l is consolidated in our financial statemefitise assets of Orkney Re Il consist of fixed-mayuiivestments
and cash and cash equivalents. Our Consolidattdrénts of Income shows the investment retur@rkifiey Re
Il as investment income, and the cost of the sBzation structure is reflected in collateral fimanfacilities
expense. Funds in the securitizations are prignasked for the purpose of the securitizations &eghce, are not
available for general corporate purposes.

To the extent we experience significant fair valleclines in our investment portfolio, we may need t
recapture a pro-rata portion of the underlying besss in Orkney Re Il and find alternative collatstgpport for the
recaptured business. No assurances can be giaewdhwould be successful in securing such altemabllateral
support.

Orkney Re Il Event of Default, Acceleration and é@osure

On the scheduled interest payment date of May @@920rkney Re Il was unable to make scheduleddste
payments on the Series A-1 Notes. Failure to nsaioh payments in full when due constitutes an evédefault
under the Orkney Re Il indenture (“Orkney EOD”)ssAired, in its capacity as financial guarantohef$eries A-1
Notes, made guarantee payments on the Series Aels Mothe amount of $1.2 million. As a resultleé Orkney
EOD, Assured obtained, and will continue to havertain enhanced contractual rights under the tciiosa
documents and additional fees will be accruedHerguarantee coverage.

Among Assured’s enhanced contractual rights aréh@yight to instruct the trustee to declare thegipal of
and the interest on all the Notes to be due andidaymmediately and (b) the right to forecloseume Collateral
(as defined in the related indenture). On Jur2D09, Assured instructed the trustee to accelé¢hnat®lotes and the
trustee delivered a notice of acceleration to OykRe Il on June 18, 2009. On June 19, 2009, Assocgified
Orkney Re Il and the trustee that it was electmfpteclose upon the Collateral.

Following these actions, on June 26, 2009, SRUScisexl its contractual right under its agreemernith w
Orkney Re Il to withdraw all assets from the resesredit trust established by Orkney Re Il for bleaefit of SRUS
(which trust does not form part of the Collateralfhe withdrawn assets were deposited into SRU%egated
accounts pursuant to the terms of the reinsuragoeement between SRUS and Orkney Re 1l (the “OrkReyl
Reinsurance Agreement”), where they are held ieotal further secure Orkney Re II's obligationsSteUS under
the Orkney Re Il Reinsurance Agreement, includirayigling reserve credit to SRUS for the reinsuralietailities
that continue to be ceded to Orkney Re Il and éstain other permissible uses under the Orkneyl Reihsurance
Agreement. The transfer of assets had no impaotioconsolidated financial statements.

On the scheduled interest payment dates of Augus2d09, November 12, 2009, February 11, 2010, Mgy
2010 and August 11, 2010, Orkney Re Il was unablenake scheduled interest payments on the Serigs A-
Notes. Assured made guarantee payments on thesJeil Notes in the amount of $1.4 million, $0.9liom, $0.7
million, $0.6 million and $0.8 million, respectiyel
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For further discussion on the Orkney Re Il schedlifderest payments on the Series A-1 Notes, s¢e g
“Subsequent Events”.

Consolidated collateral finance facilities and sattization structures

The following table reflects the significant balescattributable to the collateral finance facistiand
securitization structures providing collateral sogtfio us as of September 30, 2010:

Orkney Re
(U.S. dollars in millions) Orkney | I Total
Assets
Fixed-maturity investments............ $ 1,1435 $ - $ 1,1435
Funds withheld at interest.............. - 325.0 325.0
Cash and cash equivalents............ 49.9 1.6 51.5
All other assets.......cccooveeveeeeeeeeseen 104.3 59.2 163.5
TOtal ASSELS.....oveeeeeeeereeeee e, $ 12977 $ 388 $ 16835
Liabilities
Reserves for future policy benefits $ 316.7 $ 1265 $ 443.2
Collateral finance facilities............. 850.0 450.0 1,300.0
All other liabilities...........cccoeeeeeeenen. 20.4 17.4 37.8
Total liabilities ...........cocovevrvreeenne $ 11871 $ 5939 $ 17810

The assets listed in the foregoing table are stibjea variety of restrictions on their use, asfeet in, and
governed by, the transaction documents for theiegdge collateral finance facilities and securitiaa structures to
which they relate. In addition, of the amountsfeeth in total assets above, $357.9 million an@Z% million, for
Orkney | and Orkney Re II, respectively, have beetiuded from the total investments of consolidatée amount
on the Consolidated Balance Sheet of SRGL as defdyer 30, 2010. Such excluded amounts represerasssets
projected to support the expected reinsurancelitiabi of $316.7 million and $126.5 million, assaigd with
business ceded to Orkney | and Orkney Re II, rdgmdg. No assurances can be given that the erpect
reinsurance liabilities will not increase in theeav of adverse mortality experience in our reinsoea
agreements. Under certain circumstances, suchrselweortality experience may in future periods éase the
amount of assets excluded from the total investmeftconsolidated VIE on the Consolidated Balanbee$ of
SRGL. These reinsurance liabilities of Orkney t @rkney Re Il are eliminated from the ConsolidaBadance
Sheet of SRGL because they represent inter-comipangactions.
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The following table reflects the significant balascattributable to the collateral finance faciitiand
securitization structures providing collateral soigo us as of December 31, 2009:

Orkney Re
(U.S. dollars in millions) Orkney | I Total
Assets
Fixed-maturity investments............ $ 1,001.1 $ - $ 1,001.1
Funds withheld at interest.............. - 303.1 303.1
Cash and cash equivalents............ 113.1 1.9 115.0
All other assets..........covveveeeeveereics 106.4 60.1 166.5
TOtal ASSELS...ovieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeenn. $ 12206 $ 3651 $ 15857
Liabilities
Reserves for future policy benefits $ 313.0 $ 118.0 $ 431.0
Collateral finance facilities............. 850.0 450.0 1,300.0
All other liabilities........cccceeeeeeeeen.n. 33.9 10.8 447
Total liabilities ..........cccoevveeeeereeenn. $ 11969 $ 5788 $ 17757

The following tables reflect the significant incomtatement amounts attributable to the collaterance
facilities and securitization structures providingllateral support to us for the three and nine tm®rended
September 30, 2010:

Three months ended September

30, 2010
Orkney Re

(U.S. dollars in millions) Orkney | I Total
Revenues
Premiums earned, net................... $ 21.6 $ 9.2 $ 30.8
Investment income, net.................. 5.7 3.6 9.3
Net realized and unrealized gains

(I0SSES) .ooeeeeeiieee e, 25.4 (0.7) 24.7
Net embedded derivative

adjustments...........cc.ceeeveenn o - 8.8 8.8
Total reVenUeS ..........ccoveevereeeeeenee. $ 527 $ 209 % 73.6
Expenses
Claims and other policy benefits.... $ 21.2 $ 8.3 $ 29.5
Amortization of deferred acquisition

costs and other insurance

eXPeNSES, Net ......cevvvvveeeieeeee e 4.6 1.9 6.5
Operating eXPenses........ccvvvvveeeeeen. - 0.1 0.1
Collateral finance facilities expenses 4.0 2.4 6.4
Total benefits and expenses.......... $ 298 $ 127 $ 42.5
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Nine months ended September 30,
2010

Orkney Re

(U.S. dollars in millions) Orkney | I Total
Revenues
Premiums earned, net................... $ 64.6 $ 37.9 $ 1025
Investment income, net.................. 17.6 13.6 31.2
Net realized and unrealized gains

(I0SSES) ..cooeveeieeece e, 72.6 (0.9) 71.7
Net embedded derivative

AdjUSTMENES.....eeeeieieeree e e o - 171 171
Total FeVeNUES ........c.vveverereeeeeenee. $ 1548 $ 677 0§ 2225
Expenses
Claims and other policy benefits.... $ 56.3 $ 29.4 $ 85.7
Amortization of deferred acquisition

costs and other insurance

EXPENSES, Net ....oooeiiiiiiiiiiiii e 13.6 8.4 22.0
Operating eXpenses...............eeeee... 0.2 0.3 0.5
Collateral finance facilities expenses 114 6.9 18.3
Total benefits and expenses.......... $ 815 $ 450 § 1265

The following tables reflect the significant incomtatement amounts attributable to the collaterance
facilities and securitization structures providingllateral support to us for the three and nine tm®rended
September 30, 2009:

Three months ended September
30, 2009

Orkney Re

(U.S. dollars in millions) Orkney | I Total
Revenues
Premiums earned, net................... $ 24.0 $ 10.9 $ 34.9
Investment income, net.................. 4.7 2.8 7.5
Net realized and unrealized gains

(S5 N 54.6 (2.3) 52.3
Total FEVENUES ..., $ 833 $ 114 $ 94.7
Expenses
Claims and other policy benefits.... $ 22.4 $ 6.9 $ 29.3
Amortization of deferred acquisition

costs and other insurance

eXPeNSES, Net ......cevvvvveeeieeeee e 5.7 2.1 7.8
Operating eXpenses.........cccccceveenn. - - -
Collateral finance facilities expenses 4.6 2.7 7.3
Total benefits and expenses.......... $ 327 $ 117 0§ 444

36



SCOTTISH RE GROUP LIMITED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDIT ED)
September 30, 2010
14. Collateral Finance Facilities (continued)

Nine months ended September

30, 2009
Orkney Re

(U.S. dollars in millions) Orkney | I Total
Revenues
Premiums earned, net................... $ 68.3 $ 41.2 $ 1095
Investment income, net.................. 17.4 8.4 25.8
Net realized and unrealized gains

(S5 N 51.0 (30.3) 20.7
Total revenues ..........c.cccvvvevevevmeene. $ 1367 $ 193 $ 156.0
Expenses

Claims and other policy benefits.... $ 60.4 $ 25.1 $ 85.5
Amortization of deferred acquisition
costs and other insurance

EXPENSES, Net .....coeeviiiiiiiiiii e 15.3 8.9 24.2
Operating eXpenses...............eeeee... 0.2 0.3 0.5
Collateral finance facilities expenses 16.6 9.5 26.1
Total benefits and expenses.......... $ 925 $ 438 § 1363
15. Commitments and Contingencies

Indemnification

In connection with an examination of the statutbmancial statements of certain of our operatingunance
subsidiaries, and, specifically, the purchase attiog entries made in connection with the 2004 &itjon of the
ING business, we determined that certain intercampaceivables and intercompany claims were ndéctfd in
the statutory financial statements of SRUS and $iRBccordance with applicable statutory accounpragtices.
Management determined that, as a result of theswserthe statutory surplus for SRD was overstaiada
cumulative basis at year-end 2004, 2005 and 208jlting in a restated statutory surplus at yedr-2006 of
approximately $285 million, after giving effecttttese corrections.

In addition, management determined that the statworplus for SRUS was understated on a cumuldasis
at year-end 2005 and 2006, resulting in a resttidtory surplus at year-end 2006 of approxima&g4 million,
after giving effect to these corrections.

The restated statutory surplus of each of SRUS SR® met the applicable minimum statutory surplus
requirements at December 31, 2006. None of theseations impacted our historical consolidatedaficial
statements under U.S. GAAP.

Pursuant to the Agreement with MassMutual Capitad £erberus, we made certain representations and
warranties regarding the statutory financial staets of each of our insurance subsidiaries, inoydRD and
SRUS, for the years ended 2003, 2004, and 2005vétidrespect to SRUS but not SRD, the first thyearters of
2006, including that these statements were prepareginformity with applicable statutory accountimgactices and
fairly present, in accordance with such practices i all material respects, the statutory finahcandition of the
relevant insurance subsidiary at the respectivesdatn light of our discovery of the correctioressdribed above,
we notified MassMutual Capital and Cerberus, asiired by the terms of the Agreement, of the misstent of
reported statutory surplus in SRD at year-end 2@l year-end 2005 resulting in a cumulative oveestant for
the two year period at year-end 2005 of approxilma&@0 million on an after-tax basis, and the ustitement of
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statutory surplus in SRUS for the year ended Deeerfiti, 2005 of approximately $14.5 million on ateratax
basis. On November 16, 2007, MassMutual Capitdl @erberus responded by notifying us of their camdkat
the corrections described above may constitutechesaof certain of the representations and wagamtiade by us
in the Agreement. Under the Agreement, in the eeéra claim for losses resulting from a diminutionvalue,
such losses would be determined by an independeestiment banking firm of national reputation, agrepon by
us and MassMutual Capital and Cerberus, based angels in the valuation of SRGL using the assumsgtanmd
models used by MassMutual Capital and Cerberuseatime of their decision to invest in us. Furthere, should
any claim for indemnification be made by MassMutGapital and Cerberus, the Agreement provides dhgt
decision regarding defending or settling such claiith be taken by a committee of independent dwestof our
Board of Directors. In their November 16, 2007respondence, MassMutual Capital and Cerberus rexuézat
we convene a committee of independent directors.adfion has since been taken by us or MassMutapit&} and
Cerberus in respect of this claim. At this time @0 not know what the amount of any indemnifidbkses would
be, if any, or what potential defenses or otheiititons on indemnification may be available tourgler those
circumstances. The Agreement provides that angnmdfication claim would be satisfied by adjustitiie
conversion amount at which the Convertible CumuéatParticipating Preferred Shares issued to Massillut
Capital and Cerberus are convertible into our GadirBhares.

16. Subsequent Events

The subsequent events disclosed in thess totthe consolidated financial statements haee bgaluated by
management up to and including the publicatiorheffinancial statements on November 19, 2010.

Orkney Re

Subsequent to September 30, 2010, OrkneghBerged its intent to hold its investments foreaiqal of time
sufficient to recover the statutory accounting amed cost basis of its investments. This chamgatent caused
Orkney Re to record other-than temporary impairse(fOTTIs”) of approximately $115 million, which
represented the difference between the amortizetbeses and the fair values of Orkney Re’s investsa Orkney
Re recorded the OTTIs as realized losses in itsitety accounting basis financial statements fer time months
ended September 30, 2010, but this change in imtedtthe resulting statutory basis losses did ffectaour
financial statements or the results of our openatioecause the investments were classified asfretcading and
were already carried at fair value in our consaéddinancial statements. The statutory lossesaed Orkney Re’s
statutory surplus from $992 million to $877 milliamd reduced its company action level Risk Baseuit&@aatio
by approximately 10%, to 2,076%.

Orkney Re I

On the scheduled interest payment dateayelber 11, 2010, Orkney Re Il was unable to makeduled
interest payments on the Series A-1 Notes. AsaltteAssured made guarantee payments on the JetieNotes
in the amount of $0.8 million.
Deferral of Interest Payments on Floating Rate CégdiSecurities and Trust Preferred Securities

Subsequent to September 30, 2010, we hesreied and deferred payment of an additional $GIRom of
interest on our floating rate capital securitiesl amst preferred securities. As of November 191 ® we have
accrued and deferred payment on a total of $10limbf interest.
Non-declaration of Perpetual Preferred Shares Dieicds

In accordance with the relevant financiatseunder the terms of the Perpetual PreferredeShaur Board was

precluded from declaring and paying dividends an @vttober 15, 2010 dividend payment date. Asudssed in
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Note 9, “Non-cumulative Perpetual Preferred Sharée® holders of the Perpetual Preferred Sharesncento be
entitled, pursuant to the terms of and subjeche grocedures set forth in the Certificate of Deatpns for the
Perpetual Preferred Shares, to elect two diredtosur Board as a result of dividends on the PegleRreferred

Shares having not been declared and paid for sixave dividend periods. This right has not bedidlaexercised
to date.
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